
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regional Planning Commission 
Kingston Springs, Tennessee 

 
14 March 2024 
Meeting Packet 

 
 



 



 
 

Kingston Springs Regional Planning Commission  

Meeting Agenda 

14 March 2024 

1 
 

 
 
 

 

The meeting was called to order by _____________________at _____________pm. 

 

1. Roll Call of Voting Members: 
 

Keith Allgood   ______ 

Tony Thompson     ______ 

Tony Gross     ______ 

Mike Hargis   ______ 

Lauren Hill   ______ 

Mike Patenaude   ______ 

Craig Kitch   ______ 

Marie Spafford   ______ 

Bob Stohler   ______ 
 

2. Non-Voting Staff: 
 

Sharon Armstrong, Planner ______ 

Peter Chimera, P.E.                      ______ (Attends at Request of Planning Commission) 
 

3. Ex Officio Attendance:    
 

John Lawless, City Manager      ______ 

Attorney                                        ______ (Attends at request of Planning Commission) 
  

4. Declaration of Quorum by Chairperson. 

 

5. Motion to approve 9 February, 2024, Planning Commission meeting minutes. 

 

6. Motion to approve 09 February, 2024 Planning Commission meeting agenda. 
 

7. Community Input 
 

Public Comments shall be:  

a.    limited to three (3) minutes for all regular agenda items and items removed from the 

Agenda and an overall time limit for all comments on an agenda item to ten (10) minutes 

unless extended by vote of a majority of the Planning Commission 

 

Submittal Deadline Date:  February 9, 2024 



 



 

2 
 

b.    The Chairman shall limit comments to the Agenda items, to relevant comments and shall 

restrict comments that are disruptive in nature. 
 

8. Declaration of Conflict(s) 

 

In the event that any member shall have a personal interest of any kind in a matter then 

before the Kingston Springs Municipal-Regional Planning Commission, she/he shall disclose 

his/her interest. Conflict of Interest is defined in the Kingston Springs Municipal Code Title 

1, Chapter 4, Section 1-402 through Section 1-404. 
 

9. Old Business: 

 

A. Ellersly PUD – Update 

 

B. GCTN – Update on Maintenance Facility Proposed Site Plan, Performance Bond 

Requirements for construction damage to South Harpeth Rd, to CC Rd. within the 

city limits of the Town of Kingston Springs 

a. Soil and Erosion issues reported by Mimi Roase  

 

C. Discussion of Sidewalks from the Ellersly PUD to Downtown Kingston Springs – 

Update. 

 

D. Discussion of revision to the Zoning Ordinance, Article 3.100 Accessory Uses 

Update. 

 

E. Roy B McPherson  - The Willows, 129 E. Kingston Springs Rd., Core Drill update 

 

10. New Business: Recommendations by the Town of Kingston Springs City Commission 

 

A. Knobel Signs - 121B Luyben Hills Rd. Considerations of Signage recommendation 

of the KS Design Review Committee to the KS Regional Planning Commission. 

1. Recess for the Design Review Committee Recommendation on Signage – 

121B Luyben Hills Rd. 

2. Reconvene to consider recommendation of the Design Review Committee 

Recommendation on Signage – 121B Luyben Hills Rd. 

B. Recommendation by the KS Regional Planning Commission - Concept Review 

Application, property at located 173 Luyben Hills Rd. regarding proposed from C-2 

Highway Commercial District to I-1 Light Industrial District. 
 

12. Motion to Adjourn. 
 

 

The meeting was adjourned by __________________________at _________pm. 

 

 

 

 

      ___________________________                   __________________________________ 

Lauren Hill              Jamie Dupré 

Planning Commission Chair        City Recorder 



 



 
 

Kingston Springs Regional Planning Commission  

Meeting Minutes 

08 February 2024 

1 
 

 
 
 
 

 

The meeting was called to order by at pm. 

 

1. Roll Call of Voting Members: 
 

Keith Allgood   Present 

Tony Thompson     Present 

Tony Gross     Present 

Mike Hargis   Present 

Lauren Hill   Present 

Mike Patenaude   Present 

Craig Kitch   Absent 

Marie Spafford   Present 

Bob Stohler   Present 
 

 

2. Non-Voting Staff: 
 

Sharon Armstrong, Planner Present 

Peter Chimera, P.E.                      Absent (Attends at Request of Planning Commission) 
 

 

3. Ex Officio Attendance:    
 

John Lawless, City Manager      Present 

City Attorney   Absent (Attends at request of Planning Commission) 

 
  

4. Declaration of Quorum by Chairperson. 
Chair Hill declared a quorum. 

 

 

5. Motion to approve 11 January, 2024, Planning Commission meeting minutes. 
Motion to approve 11 January, 2024, Planning Commission meeting minutes made by Mike 

Hargis, with a second by Tony Gross. Motion passed. 

 

 

 

Submittal Deadline Date:  January 12, 2024 



 

2 
 

6. Motion to approve 08 February, 2024, Planning Commission meeting agenda. 
Motion to approve 08 February, 2024, Planning Commission meeting agenda made by Mike 

Patenaude, with a second by Tony Gross. Motion passed. 

 

 

7. Community Input 
 

Public Comments shall be:  

a. limited to three (3) minutes for all regular agenda items and items removed from the 

agenda and an overall time limit for all comments on an agenda item to ten (10) minutes 

unless extended by vote of a majority of the Planning Commission 

b. The Chairman shall limit comments to the agenda items, to relevant comments and shall 

restrict comments that are disruptive in nature. 

 

Bob Sanders, 225 Woodlands Drive, informed Planning Commission members that Mr. 

Kitch had been moved to a rehab facility in Bellevue. 

 
 

8. Declaration of Conflict(s) 

 

In the event that any member shall have a personal interest of any kind in a matter then 

before the Kingston Springs Municipal-Regional Planning Commission, she/he shall disclose 

his/her interest. Conflict of Interest is defined in the Kingston Springs Municipal Code Title 

1, Chapter 4, Section 1-402 through Section 1-404. 

 
 

9. Old Business: 

 

A. Ellersly PUD – Update 

City Planner Armstrong stated they did receive the final set of plans that the engineer has 

signed off on last week for the grading plan for Ellersly, and the improvements for the 

ditch line in front of it on West Kingston Springs Road. The Stop Work Order was lifted. 

Work has begun on that area. A new permit was issued to incorporate the new plans 

rather than going back to old permit which was close to maturation. Very clear 

restrictions were placed on it. They are very clear in detail about sticking to the 

subscribed set of plans and calling 811 before digging. All the lots that will be affected 

by this work will have to scope the sewer line to make sure there is no damage to sewer 

line for each of the lots that are under development. They also had a conversation with 

them about any potential plans for the property in the rear. There is no longer a Phase II 

or Phase III. It is just vacant land. They indicated they were working on a set of plans for 

development for the rear portion of that property. Their performance bond and their 

permit would have stopped in a couple of months. That is why the grading permit was 

made for the year. Their performance bond and PUD agreement also expire at a year, 

which PC approved that in March of 2023. On the March agenda next month PC will 

have to revote on whether or not to extend the performance period for planned unit 

development approved last year. It was kept on a tight schedule for a reason, so that we 

did not find ourselves 15 years down the road with property still under development.  

 



 

3 
 

City Planner Armstrong and City Manager Lawless had a meeting with Mr. Merville, 

Mr. Mayne, and Mr. Reisner to discuss a proposed sidewalk from back of Phase I 

connecting to sidewalk at the condos. She has a discussion scheduled next week on the 

back row of the condo buildings. If that is successful, then she can speak to Mr. Francis 

who owns the rental house next door. It is a short stretch to connect that sidewalk if he is 

willing to donate the right-of-way to the city for the sidewalk. Then we can connect to 

the sidewalk at the end of the commercial strip where Turnbull Provisions is located. 

That would give residents a walkable path from the subdivision all the way through to 

downtown.  

 

B. GCTN – Update on Maintenance Facility Proposed Site Plan  

City Planner Armstrong said in October GCTN submitted a site plan that had an in-and-

out driveway for that location at the maintenance facility. Armstrong spoke with Mr. 

Hooper by email. They are still working with Mrs. Dorris in order to come to some 

agreement for that second entrance because it will require a perpetual agreement 

between the two. It can’t have a time expiration because they are putting hardscape on a 

parking lot, and an entry and maintenance for that. Those plans are still on hold until that 

is resolved. The city is ready to respond when that agreement comes forward. 

 

C. Discussion of Sidewalks from the Ellersly PUD to Downtown Kingston Springs – 

Update. 

City Planner Armstrong touched on sidewalks earlier in the meeting. She added that they 

will move forward with discussions with property owners to see if we can pull that 

together. It is her understanding from the discussion with the group she and the City 

Manager met with, that it should not be a very expensive pursuit to take it through that 

path from the rear of the development. It’s shorter and easier to accomplish. We have 

utilities running in the boundary line of the ditch between Ellersly and the property next 

door. At the location where the sidewalk crosses, Armstrong made the suggestion that 

the utilities be encased in a concrete culvert so that there is no potential for damage to 

the utilities in the future. 

 

D. Discussion of revision to the Zoning Ordinance, Article 3.100 Accessory Uses 

Update. 

City Planner Armstrong said last month she brought the suggestion from one of City 

Commissioners that we explore the extension/expansion of accessory uses in the 

districts. She has looked at proposal and said it would be difficult to accomplish it with a 

square footage scale for an individual lot because every lot has particulars on it that may 

not be present on another lot, depending on where the utilities run, sewer lines run. 

There are a number of things that come to bear. The simplest, easiest method to 

accomplish this is percentage. However, the smaller the lot the more difficult it is to 

increase the percentage, because you have lots in the city that are 0.15 of an acre, so 

increasing accessory uses on a lot that small is very difficult to do without running into 

the step tank, parking spaces, utilities, or whatever else. Her suggestion would be to 

bring back to the PC an increase in percentage, somewhat zoning district dependent, but 

also takes into account that there is a wide variation of the lot size in these districts. We 

may want to look at establishing something, as we did for keeping of animals on three 

acres or more, something of that nature that we may want to look at it from that 

perspective. She has been working on that for the last month and hopes to have 



 

4 
 

something in draft form by the next meeting. She said we also have to be cognizant that 

it affects other areas of the zoning ordinance like lot coverage in a district. It also affects 

existing private covenants and restrictions or HOA restrictions that may be in place, and 

we would have to be able to draft it in such a way that we don’t come in conflict. While 

we don’t enforce those, we are not allowed to issue a permit in conflict with them. As an 

example, in The Woodlands accessory uses in buildings are restricted to 900 sq. ft. 

regardless of the size of the lot. That’s just the covenants and restrictions that were 

placed on them and they are perpetual. They may not be enforced by the residents, but 

they’re still in place, and until they remove them, we are stuck with those parameters. 

Armstrong will try to see if there is some way to provide flexibility, but cautioned that 

we need to keep in mind that there may be push back by some residents because they’ve 

been restricted, whereas others are not. We already have allowances and variances for 

the location of accessory structures. If you have severe topography or some other issue 

that’s tied to the land, then the Board of Zoning Appeals can give you a variance to 

locate it in the side yard or some other place if you simply can’t place it, but those are 

not tied to the preference of the property owner. They are tied to the circumstances of the 

land. Variances, in this particular case can be problematic from a litigation standpoint 

because you are picking and choosing how you apply them, so we have to be sure that 

what we do is consistent, and allows the same opportunity for everybody within that 

district. Chair Hill asked if this was something that there is a pressing need for the PC to 

consider doing at this time. Armstrong said that she didn’t know that there’s a pressing 

need. She thought we had to be mindful that each district has a principal use. As an 

example, whether it’s R1 R2 or R3, the principal use of that zoning district is residential, 

which is the house. That is the primary and principal use. All planning and zoning 

regulations are based on a dictionary that is dedicated solely to land use, which is 

Black’s Law. That is the dictionary that is the basis of zoning. While there’s not a 

pressing issue, people want to use more and more of their property. We have to keep 

accessory use below the superior use, which is residential in a residential area. We also 

have to look at lot coverage, which is there to make sure that there is sufficient room to 

accommodate the other uses, such as sewer, the step tank, parking spaces, driveway. The 

district lot coverage restrictions are a percentage. They range as low as 25% for people 

that bought in more rural areas, and didn’t want to live in a congested neighborhood, and 

go all the way up to 50%. There is no magic number that is useable for every single 

district. As an example, in Ellersly Place the lots are very small, so they are zoned R3. If 

we were to say you can build out for accessory use 70% on your lot in Ellersly, you 

might get a 6x4 building because the lots are so small. We have to make sure that we are 

not violating the intent of the ordinance, which is the principal use, so it has to be 

subordinate, not only in size, but in use. It is not something that is pressing and needs to 

be rapid. It needs to be carefully considered because so many other elements of land use 

come to bear. Hill said that her concern would be that there are so many varieties of 

sizes and shapes, can we craft a One Stop Shop fix all type of thing or do we need to just 

let it go with exceptions through BZA. Armstrong said the BZA can except the location 

of accessory use. It cannot except size. Size is limited by fixed number. As an example, 

R1A, which is our residential agricultural district. Lot coverage is restricted to 25%. 

People buy in these areas relying on the confidence that the zoning ordinance is going to 

allow much larger open spaces between structures than would exist in R3, where the lots 

can be as small as 6,000 SF, so very compressed. You have to think about what’s 

occurred before you change it and what’s occurred afterwards. As an example, from 



 

5 
 

several years ago, someone applied to build a workshop on their property in the R1A 

district, and the proposed size of that workshop was 9,000 SF. The house on the lot was 

1320 SF. It defeats the purpose of the intent of the district, because it is residential. In 

areas like R1A, we have larger lots, more expansive land use, but we allow that you are 

insulated somewhat on those lots by agricultural use. Armstrong used Mike Patenaude as 

an example. He has horses. He needs a stable for his horse. He has more than three acres. 

That is an agricultural use that’s insulated by state agricultural statutes. While we still 

require a permit to make sure that Mike builds a barn that doesn’t fall on his head, we 

don’t restrict the zoning element of that. Anything above five acres that doesn’t require 

the extension of a primary utility, a large meter for the utility, or the crafting of a new 

road, not a driveway, are exempt from zoning anyway. They are completely exempt 

from those restrictions, which is why, as you get in the county you may see a huge barn 

and small house. As you find a pathway in one area of the ordinance, then you may be 

bumping up against a conflict in another area. While we do not have authority to enforce 

HOA regulations or covenant restrictions, we can’t issue a permit that goes against them, 

whichever is more stringent will apply. Mike Patenaude said that something that was 

confusing to him, and probably others as well: Many times, when talking about a home, 

we talk about livable square footage, what’s inside the walls of the house, but as he read 

the minutes from last month, an attached garage is part of the total square feet, an 

attached porch is part of the total square feet. Armstrong said that was correct. Someone 

living in what they think is a 1600 SF house, it may have to be bigger; 50% is a bigger 

number than I may think it is. That clarification needs to be there. Patenaude asked for 

clarification regarding his own home. He said his house has a full, unfinished basement 

with concrete poured walls and concrete floor, that has a drive out garage. The garage is 

under the roof of the living area. Does the square footage of that garage count as part of 

the total square footage of the house? Armstrong said that can be very complex. We 

don’t permit in the city the same way they permit in the county. In the county if you 

submit a set of building plans that has an upper story, a first story, and a basement, 

whether it has a garage or nothing, it's just a basement. They require you to pay the 

building permit fee for all that space, whether you finish it or not. She would not advise 

doing this because someone may never finish that basement, and you are charging them 

for it as part of building permit fee, and it becomes calculated in their tax bill as finished 

space. That affects their tax bill for space they’re actually not living in. What we’ve done 

in the Town Kingston Springs, which is equitable and fair, is when you get ready to 

finish that basement, and we tried to get the word out, please get a building permit. It 

affects the appraised value of your house, if affects your homeowner’s insurance if you 

have not secured a building permit, and affects the value of your structure, and it’s 

allowing a privilege for someone that finishes a basement without a permit in not paying 

property tax on finished space that your neighbors are paying. In answer to question that 

was asked, if it is unfinished, it is not counted. Patenaude asked if a garage that is 

attached to the house, it is unfinished inside even though it has a roof and a poured 

concrete floor, but it has no special duct work inside. Armstrong said they are not 

required to be heated and cooled. That’s another designation for an attached garage. She 

said for an attached garage, we don’t make those distinctions. Those distinctions are 

made by the property assessor. She said if you have on your tax bill, garage finished, that 

means it has been drywalled. It doesn’t count as living space, so we don’t charge you 

adequate facilities tax on it because you are not living in the garage. When we calculate 

accessory use, we count that space as part of the building structure. If you have an 



 

6 
 

unfinished basement, nothing has ever been done, it is just raw studs and concrete floor, 

if it’s not assessed as finished, even though it’s a drive out garage or whatever it is, it 

can’t be calculated as part of the total square footage. It creates a lot of confusion, but we 

are distinct from what the property assessor says, but we try to give every benefit to 

everyone that we can under the current regulations. Some of those are outside the control 

of the city because it is a designation on taxation, adequate facilities tax, both in the 

county and the city, and it has a huge impact on your homeowner’s insurance and your 

mortgage, and the appraised value of your house. The language is difficult to decipher 

sometimes, but we try to give every benefit that we can in accommodating that.  

 

E. Roy B McPherson - The Willows, 129 E. Kingston Springs Rd., Consideration of 

staff recommendation to deny renewal of the PUD Plans for the project 

City Planner Armstrong said the last time we visited this we were in the discussion for 

the core drilling sites on this property for the field that was installed in excess of the 

permit and for some of the materials that staff observed on site that are not permissible – 

construction waste and other things. Mr. McPherson is at a point where his PUD plans 

are about to expire. It expires at the end of the month. This is the PUD plans that the 

Planning Commission approved. Armstrong gave a brief update of what has occurred 

since the approval of the core drill site. Armstrong asked for and received an update 

from Mr. McPherson on the progress that has been made since the PC approved the core 

drilling sites. What she received was a response that said that the sites as approved were 

drilled. Fifty percent of the drills failed because they used cardboard tube in order to 

collect samples for compaction. When fill has been placed on a construction site and 

compacted, whether appropriately or inappropriately, which is what we are trying to 

establish – was it compacted sufficiently that it could support development – parking 

lots, structures. When you use cardboard and it encounters rock, it crushes the tube so 

sample is useless. They also said the lab tests were done, and they used a term that she 

was not used to in a lab report for inorganic compounds, parameters. She did not know 

what this was, and has asked for clarification. They state that they are about ready to 

submit their reports for review by the owner and by advisors of the owners. Staff asked 

for 13 locations for compaction. They were not arbitrarily selected. They were selected 

because they were in areas that were outside of the grading permit or areas where fill 

was installed that was suspect because there was construction debris and other materials 

in it. The requirement for the city is so that we have sufficient evidence provided by the 

developer that the site as filled will not present a hazard to future construction on the 

property. The failure of 50% of the samples that we asked for is insufficient in 

Armstrong’s opinion, to provide a proper report because the areas that failed are in areas 

that we have particular concerns. With the Planning Commission’s consent, Armstrong 

would like to go back to the developer and his team at this point, and tell them that the 

first time we went through this process about six years ago, those drills were done with 

almost the same equipment that an arc steel drove it into the ground with a bag inside of 

it that collects the sample as it is cored as it comes out of the ground in order to test the 

compaction. What we are looking for is safety in the degree of compaction. For the lab, 

she is uninterested in what parameters they chose to use. She is interested in what they 

put in the ground. Armstrong said the lab report from five years ago listed carcinogens: 

lead, mercury, and other compounds that can poison the drinking water. The lab test 

taken after they removed all that fill indicated some of those chemicals barely survived 

the tolerance rate for what’s allowed. Armstrong asked for permission and consent from 



 

7 
 

the Planning Commission to go back to developer and tell him that those core tests are 

insufficient to meet what was approved on those site locations based on staff 

recommendation (City Planner and City Engineer) of where we needed those samples 

collected in order to assure the stability of the ground, and in order to determine what’s 

in the dirt. Tony Gross said on a further level this was a discussion too on the idea of 

denying the renewal of the PUD. Armstrong said we need to split these two things apart. 

One is an enforcement mechanism, which is the collection and lab reports for the soil for 

what’s been done. Regardless of the status of the approval of the PUD or not, this is an 

enforcement effort. It’s separate from that. Armstrong said they need to be considered 

separately. One doesn’t have any bearing on the other. The core drilling and the lab 

reports are going to be required whether the project goes forward or not. Tony Gross 

made the motion to give the city planner approval to address the core drill sites with the 

developer, with a second by Mike Hargis. Motion passed.  

 

Armstrong said for the second part of this, there was a great deal of discussion in the last 

meeting that this was on the agenda, as to the willingness of the developer to move 

forward and staff’s frustration with the lack of progress towards the development, the 

number of times we’ve had to intercede in order to try to obtain that. The Planned Unit 

Development agreement has never been completed because we haven’t gotten to that 

point yet because we have to keep backtracking for enforcement issues. But the plans 

themselves were submitted in 2013, withdrawn, submitted again in 2016, withdrawn, 

submitted again in 2018, and approved. Then there was a change again in 2020. We are 

on the fourth set of plans on this project. It has an expiration date under the statutes of 

the city ordinance. That expiration date is there for a reason. The ordinance states that if 

no progress towards the construction of the utilities for the development is made in 12 

months, approval is void. This can be reconsidered, which is the reason she placed it on 

the agenda. Staff recommendation would be not to approve. Tony Gross said that was 

where he was. It has gone on long enough. Mike Patenaude asked if they did not approve 

the extension, what happens. Armstrong said the property will not just sit there. The core 

drill stability of that, cleaning up of the site is an enforcement action. That will continue 

regardless. That’s why discussion was separated into two different topics. Where we are 

now: more than a year ago the city was granted approval to file the application with 

TDOT to drill under the road. To say that gaining the performance bond and the other 

items necessary to cause that to happen has been a challenge, would be an 

understatement. In the midst of all of this, we have a developer who has yet once again 

violated very specific written restrictions on that grading permit and caused things to 

happen, which increases the cost to the city for enforcement activity, engineering review 

time before this body. She said she did not make this recommendation lightly, but there 

is no evidence of forward progress. She said what she sees is a willful violation of the 

ground rules and requests for forgiveness over and over again. Had this developer not 

gone through this process four years ago, expended a tremendous amount of time and 

money to correct this deficiency the first time, and then done it again, she might have 

taken a different recommendation, but it is a willful violation. Mike Patenaude clarified 

that Mr. McPherson has to do the core drills for the purpose stated, and Armstrong added 

that he has to correct whatever deficiencies exist. Chair Hill asked if this was regardless 

of the PUD being approved or not, because of the damage to the environment, and 

Armstrong said that was correct. Patenaude asked if the PUD is disapproved, and 

Armstrong added that there is no PUD yet. The PC never even got to the agreement, just 



 

8 
 

the plan set was submitted. Patenaude asked what are his obligations? Armstrong said if 

PC does not renew the approval of the plan sets, which have expired, then Mr. 

McPherson’s obligations are still to clean up that site, stabilize the ground, and remove 

anything that creates an issue for the water or the soil that is a hazard to this community. 

Patenaude asked if he can then own it in that state indefinitely. Armstrong said he can 

own it or sell it. At one point there was an attempt to market the property with an 

improved plan unit development on it that had not been approved. There is still a 

solicitation sign for rock and dirt even though it is under a Stop. Armstrong said the PC 

has cooperated, encouraged, and right now it is a tremendous amount of staff time in a 

revolving conversation that is ongoing with no forward movement. Marie Spafford 

asked, if PC disapproves it if he can come back for another one. Armstrong said anybody 

can file in front of the Planning Commission a request, but given the history of the 

development of this property so far, the comments that would be most relevant are that 

there is a lot of energy being expended on pushing dirt, pushing things around and 

burying them with absolutely no goal in sight. At this point, it is a huge demand on staff 

resources and it is not bearing any fruit, for both engineer and planner, and city manager. 

Mike Hargis asked for clarification on whether or not there was a PUD agreement in 

place, and Armstrong said there is not. He never completed the steps necessary for PUD 

agreement. The plan set was approved, and it has an expiration date that is expired. 

Hargis asked if he fixed what needed fixing, could he resubmit a plan for approval. 

Armstrong said he could, but her recommendation would probably remain the same. 

Tony Gross made a motion to deny renewal PUD plan (there is no PUD agreement 

because he hasn’t taken necessary steps). There was a second to the motion. Tony Gross 

said this was a project he was optimistic about initially, but it has gone on and on, and he 

did not feel like there’s been any sincerity from his point of view to the town. Armstrong 

added that the activity going on is controversial to the plan set that has been approved. 

It’s not going anywhere. It was not being properly done. It has been pushed around for 

13 years. Motion to deny renewal of PUD plan approved unanimously. 

 

11. New Business: Recommendations by the Town of Kingston Springs City Commission 

 

A. Concept Review – 120 Petro Rd., Realtor Inquiry Warehouse and Printing 

Company Location, Property is Zoned C-2 Highway Commercial District. Project 

would require rezoning to I-1 Light Industrial Use 

City Planner Armstrong said request is from Mr. Cashman, a realtor. He does not own 

the property. This property is located behind Dr. Shew’s office, between there and the 

Indian Restaurant on Petro Road. Armstrong discussed the proposal at length with Mr. 

Cashman. The proposal is to put in a 16,000 SF warehouse, single story, and 3500 SF 

office space on that lot for the relocation of an existing Global label printing industrial 

operation that is currently located in Nashville. She explained to Mr. Cashman that this 

would require rezoning. It is currently zoned C-2 Highway Commercial District. And in 

the rezoning of this property to industrial property, unlike commercial property, it has a 

50% lot coverage restriction. The mindset and rational for restricting the lot coverage on 

an industrial operation to 50% is to ensure that it’s buffered from commercial uses, 

residential uses, all those sorts of things. That is the reason that limitation exists. If this 

were to be rezoned to I-1, and she explained it to the applicant, this project would not fit. 

We do not allow the primary use of storage within the C-2 district. It can be an ancillary 

use to the primary use of commercial. Staff opinion is that this project will not fit on this 



 

9 
 

lot if it is rezoned. It would have to be greatly reduced in scale. It still would not 

overcome the fact that the primary proposed use is storage warehousing, which is 

through traffic, and would be located at the intersection of Luyben Hills and Petro Road, 

and like many other proposals that she’s seen, surviving a traffic study would be 

somewhat difficult. This is a globally distributed printing company. There is a great deal 

of truck traffic. She reviewed the site where they are currently located. There are a 

number of dock stations in that warehouse, which implies there are a number of 

semitrucks coming in and out every day, and she didn’t know how they were going to 

swing those in and out, given the short stretch to Luyben Hills Road. It won’t fit on the 

lot and allow for semi traffic to come in and out and turn around. It’s a very small lot. 

The recommendation to them was that this would not be the best use of this property, 

that it would remove a commercial lot out of the mix for the town, and that the 

restriction of 50% lot coverage would not allow for it to go there. Even after delivering 

that information, the applicant wanted the Planning Commission to discuss and 

recommend on it. They wanted feedback. Armstrong said there was a drawing in the 

packet, and as it is proposed, it can’t fit on the lot. If you reduced it in size to 50%, it still 

doesn’t take into account how you get the trucks in and out of there, and how you 

accommodate a step tank, parking spaces for employees, all those other things that have 

to be taken into consideration. This lot is too small to accommodate this use. Members 

were asked their thoughts. 

 

Bob Stohler: He had infrastructure concerns. This project will use a tremendous amount 

of water, and have a lot of waste water, and that would have to be pretreated before it 

could be taken into the wastewater system. Armstrong confirmed that that the chemicals 

involved with this type of printing are inorganic compounds that have the potential to 

dirty the water streams. 

 

Keith Allgood: We haven’t ever had the desire to have that type zoning, and for this to 

go in, and the plan doesn’t meet the needs for the zoning, raised a flag. Armstrong added 

that if you open this lot to the rezone of industrial use, you have opened up every other 

lot along that corridor to the same intensity of use.  

 

Tony Thompson: He feels the same way. It is opening up way too many problems, too 

many businesses, junkyards, anything they want to put in that’s not what needs to be in 

Kingston Springs. 

 

Mike Patenaude: He agreed with previous comments. He said we don’t have a lot of 

commercial zoning in Kingston Springs, which would support tax base here, and giving 

that up is short-sighted, for that reason and infrastructure issues and space issues. 

Armstong commented that it deprives the primary use of the C-2 Highway District, 

which is to provide things to the motoring public, and also for your resident services. 

 

Lauren Hill: She agreed with previous comments. 

 

Tony Gross: He said he respects their desire to move, but did not think this was the right 

location. 

 



 

10 
 

Mike Hargis: Agreed with previous comments and said property was not big enough for 

the proposal, even if we wanted to change it, and he didn’t think we wanted to change it 

anyway. Armstrong added that another consideration that they did not focus on was 

traffic. 

 

Marie Spafford: Agreed with other members.  

 

Armstrong thanked members for their comments. She will report them to the applicant. 

This is a concept review at this point. There is a staff review page in the packet with her 

comments. 

 

B. Concept Review 120, 126 Petro Rd. or 173 Luyben Hills Rd., Inquiry to relocate 

StoneTree Mulch, Gravel, and More, Inc.  Project would require rezoning to I-1 

Light Industrial Use. 

Armstrong said this is a proposal to look at three separate lots. This is a company that 

currently exists in Nashville, and operates out of a temporary trailer unit office. At this 

location they provide landscaping material, big rocks, that sort of thing. The first 

question proposed to staff was will this fit under building materials. It does not. These 

are landscaping materials, mulch, rock and gravel. Armstrong reviewed aerials of the 

current location in Nashville. There are a number of pieces of equipment on that lot that 

are used in the provision of the business. This, in Kingston Springs, is an industrial use. 

Any one of these three locations would require rezoning. That rezoning would have to be 

industrial, which would limit the usage of the lot for all uses to 50%. For 120 and 126 

Petro, rezoning would compact its use and business could not fit on one of those lots. 

They are currently on a large-scale property in Nashville. She did check the zoning in 

Nashville. It’s underlying base, even though the top layer is commercial, the underlying 

base is industrial. There is an overlay district on top of that property. She also informed 

the applicant that we do not allow temporary offices for trailers. It would have to be a 

stick-built office. The third site, 173 Luyben Hills is a 3-acre lot. For that 3-acre lot the 

use would then be reduced to 1.5 acres because of 50% restriction, and then there is the 

consideration of traffic, and the amount of rock, dirt, pavers, big rocks, gravel, that 

would come in and out of that use and there is currently not a demand for that much 

material in Kingston Springs, so the provision of these products would be to people 

outside of this area. That is not a disqualifier, but again it removes another commercial 

lot with an industrial use assigned to it, with a heavy usage and potentially high traffic. 

Staff recommendation is it’s not a good fit for the lot. It’s currently zoned C-2 because 

town wanted to preserve that corridor for its current and future use as C-2. Chair Hill 

invited the applicant to speak to the Planning Commission. Applicant said they have 

been in Bellevue for 10 years and they own their property. As they’ve grown, they’ve 

discovered that 25% of their customers live in Cheatham County. The applicants live in 

Pegram. They deliver in this area two to three times a day. They would love their sales 

tax to not go into Davidson County because a majority of their customers are coming 

from Dickson and Cheatham. They are looking to expand and grow and continue what 

they are doing. They would love to be here and are looking to see what is available and 

if Kingston Springs wants their business. Armstrong had a couple of observations. It is 

not a question of whether they want the business, that corridor is so compressed right 

now, it has been difficult to find a project that the westbound traffic can tolerate. There 

is zero potential to widen Luyben Hills road. It’s bound by sidewalks on both sides. The 



 

11 
 

state has zero plans to do any improvements along that corridor. Traffic is a huge issue 

here. The secondary concern is emergency response. The exit at Kingston Springs, just 

taking I-40 across the state into account, has the highest accident rate of any exit in the 

state. This is a very small town with a short corridor, with short stacking availability. 

She said all development can be accomplished, but it needs to be in the right 

environment. This would contribute to an already bad situation. That corridor was 

reserved for commercial purposes. It is not a question of whether the town wants 

someone in their community, it’s a question of whether or not the land and the traffic 

grid can tolerate the use. Applicant said that is why she was here to get educated and 

learn. Applicant was asked what type of volume of business she expected. She said that 

they are probably 50% homeowner and 50% contractor. She said 50% of what they do is 

deliveries. There are trucks that are going out. They average about 25 cars/trucks a day 

coming in. Their trucks are a single-axle dump truck and a 20-ft flatbed. The flatbed 

goes out three times a day; dump truck five to seven times. Customer trucks coming in 

are about 25 times a day (homeowners and contractors). They have one semitruck 

delivery a day. The location for 173 Luyben Hills is to the left of the box factory if you 

are facing box factory, in that curve. Applicant was thanked for her time. 

 

City Planner Armstrong informed the PC that there are three more proposals for that area 

that will be coming to PC. One is a salvage and junkyard; another is a proposal to store 

confiscated and repossessed wrecked vehicles; and a proposal for a business for business 

incubation with a warehouse at the back of each of the businesses. 
 

12. Motion to Adjourn. 
Motion to adjourn meeting made by Mike Hargis, with a second by Tony Gross. Motion 

passed and meeting was adjourned at 8:07 pm. 

 

 

 

 

 

      ___________________________                   __________________________________ 

Lauren Hill              Jamie Dupré 

Planning Commission Chair        City Recorder 



Re: Kingston Springs, TN Permit # 220025 - Commercial - New Construction-32610

City Planner <cityplanner@kingstonsprings-tn.gov>
Fri 3/1/2024 12:01 PM
To: Jeff Hooper <jhooper@bcacivil.com> 
Cc: Larry Wieck <lwieck@wieckconstruction.com>; Andy Howell <ahowell@cahco.com>; Andy Johnson <andyjskier@gmail.com>; 
John Lawless <jlawless@kingstonsprings-tn.gov> 

Good morning Jeff,

As discussed with the Kingston Springs Regional Planning Commission on several occasions in recent
months, the ac�vi�es and construc�on traffic previously routed along the detour path for the bridge
replace and are now rerouted to South Harpeth Rd. within the jurisdic�on of the town and are causing
damage to the road surface. The con�nued use of the city sec�on of the road from South Harpeth Rd. to
CC Road is the source of complaint by the City Manager, Public Works, and ci�zens. Roads and streets
within the town were visually inspected when the traffic flow for the project was rerouted a�er
comple�on of the bridge replacement project.

A Performance Bond must be provided to ensure appropriate coverage against damage for the use of
the road for the construc�on ac�vity taking place on the development. As you are aware, Cheatham
County required a bond for the county sec�on of the road during construc�on. 

The regula�ons of the town of Kingston Springs require a bond in the event of damage to the roadway
surface just as we required for the Soil and Erosion Bond. Please supply the Performance Bond as
requested. 

The permi�ed work for the Maintenance Facility and any and all other construc�on work occurring on
The Golf Club of TN and or The Golf Club of DBI using city streets must be bonded, regardless of the
ingress or egress roadways.

The permits are in place for the Maintenance Facility buildings; however no improvements can be made
covered in the Revised Site Plan submission to the Kingston Springs Regional Planning Commission un�l
and unless the proposed changes are approved by that body.

It is concerning that failures in the Soil, Erosion, and Stormwater Controls have yet again surfaced as a
community complaint. Please provide aerial photos and a plan of correc�ons. Please provide the EPSC
weekly reports since the last repor�ng period you provided as they are a condi�on of the permits.

I an�cipate the discussion regarding the city roadways and streets to be discussed at the 14 March 2024
KS Regional Planning Commission where I will ask them to formally require a Performance Bond from
the city boundary on South Harpeth Rd. to CC Road and all other roads and streets within the city
damaged by the construc�on ac�vi�es for the Golf Club of TN and The Golf Club of DBI to comply with
our codes and regula�ons.

 
I am available if you wish to discuss,

Sharon Armstrong
 



From: Jeff Hooper <jhooper@bcacivil.com>
Sent: Thursday, February 29, 2024 10:41 AM
To: City Planner <cityplanner@kingstonsprings-tn.gov>
Cc: Joseph Tichenor <buildingcodes@kingstonsprings-tn.gov>; Jamie Dupre <jdupre@kingstonsprings-tn.gov>;
Larry Wieck <lwieck@wieckconstruc�on.com>; Andy Howell <ahowell@cahco.com>; Andy Johnson
<andyjskier@gmail.com>
Subject: Re: Kingston Springs, TN Permit # 220025 - Commercial - New Construc�on-32610
 
Good Morning Sharon,

Just to clarify, the Golf Club has not commenced any work on the Dorris property.  The
Golf Club will not commence work on the Dorris’ property until (i) it has reached an
agreement with the Dorris family (which it has not); and (ii) it has received all required
approvals.
 
At this juncture, the Club is merely continuing with the construction applicable to Permit
220025 and the inspection requested is associated with the concrete slab associated with
the facility described in the building permit application.
 
I cannot speak specifically to the 911 addressing system, however, the existing
maintenance facility for the Golf Club has a postal address of 460 South Harpeth
Road for which it receives mail and deliveries and has done so for many years.  The
plans submitted and approved by the KS Regional Planning Commission showed the
existing drive that has been assigned that address and it is the construction entrance for
the permitted project applicable to the work in question.

Regarding the deferred application for use of the adjoining property owned by the Dorris
Family, an easement agreement has been submitted to Dorris’ counsel and currently
being reviewed.  Based on recent positive conversations, we are hopeful to have that
document approved by the Dorris family prior to the filing deadline for the April
Planning Commission meeting, but the approval of the Dorris Family is outside of our
control.  After The Golf Club has secured the Dorris’ approval, we understand that KS
Regional Planning Commission approval will be necessary.  
 
Please let me know if you would like to discuss.
 
Thanks,
Jeff

On Feb 28, 2024, at 3:33 PM, City Planner <cityplanner@kingstonsprings-tn.gov> wrote:



[EXTERNAL EMAIL]
Joe and Jamies,

There is a Subsurface Sewer Permit for the Maintenance Facility. Please check for a 911
Address for this loca�on at 460 S. Harpeth Dr. as I have no record of this address in my file.
There is a pending applica�on (deferred since November of 2023) before the KS Regional
Planning Commission for the revised Site Plan for Horseshoe Driveway and a requirement
from the Planning Commission for Performance Bond (road is damaged by the
construc�on), and compliant Perpetual Easement Agreement between the adjacent
property owner who owns the triangular property in front of the Maintenance Facility. The
Golf Club of TN nor Golf Club of DBI has a connec�on to South Harpeth Rd. at this loca�on.

Un�l the applicant the required informa�on and it is approved by the KS Regional Planning
Commission, the construc�on entrance cannot be used for any purposes other than the
permi�ed building cited in the 11-9-2023 Permit Renewal issued to the applicant no further
work other than approved in the renewal can be constructed.

The damage to the bridge abutment and city roads from the construc�on ac�vity reported
to staff last month and observed by city staff since then will require the applicant to
supply a Performance Bond for review and approval by the City Engineer and City Planner.

Having said that, the inspec�on requested today can occur for the slab inspec�on only. A
Performance Bond is required before any further work can con�nue on the other facili�es
as the applicant has not provided the items required by the Planning Commission and staff.

Sincerely,
Sharon Armstrong, Planner
KS Regional Planning Commission

From: Kingston Springs TN <wo@iworq.net>
Sent: Wednesday, February 28, 2024 9:01 AM
To: City Planner <cityplanner@kingstonsprings-tn.gov>; Joseph Tichenor
<buildingcodes@kingstonsprings-tn.gov>
Subject: Kingston Springs, TN Permit # 220025 - Commercial - New Construc�on-32610
 
Slab Inspection - enter via 460 S. Harpeth Road. Contact Anthony Scott at 615-533-9912.
Click Here to open inspection

https://www.iworq.net/iworq/0_Pages/popupInspection.php?sid=CMNOKLFDINBORNRBAROORABNAL600&id=54181418


Inspection Information
Permit #: 220025

Permit Date: 10/31/2022
Inspection Date: 02/28/2024

Permit Type:
Inspection Type: Footing/Slab

Requested By: Anthony Scott
Contact Info: 615-533-9912

Scheduled Date: 02/28/2024
Scheduled Time: 00:00

Completed
Date:

Description: Enter via 460 S. Harpeth Road - slab inspection. Contact Anthony Scott
at 615-533-9912

Inspection
Status: Pending

Assigned To: Joe Tichenor
Time In: 00:00

Time Out: 00:00
Hours: 0.0

Property Information
Parcel#: 099 06600 000 THE GOLF CLUB OF TN
THE GOLF CLUB OF TN 1000 GOLF CLUB DR
1000 GOLF CLUB DR Kingston Springs, TN 37082
Zoning: Overlay DistrictLot: Block:  Sub:

david.yoder@dbibeverage.com





















TOWN OF KINGSTON SPRINGS 

 
Design Review Committee 

Design Guidelines Manual 
 
  



 

 
Adopted March 8, 2012 -ii-  

 Kingston Springs Design Guidelines  

PREFACE 
 
 

The Town of Kingston Springs, a picturesque community located only 30 minutes west of 

Nashville in Cheatham County, is a community rich in history, heritage and community pride.  A 

variety of businesses operating within the Town offer amenities that enhance the quality of life 

for its residents. Community services including award-winning schools and a variety of churches, 

combined with a peaceful country setting, offer an outstanding environment in which to raise a 

family or start a business. 

 

Established in 1807, Kingston Springs has always held its small town charm in high regard, and 

therefore, it seeks to maintain that charm and character by ensuring attractive and quality 

residential and commercial development. The City Commission, town administration, and 

citizens of Kingston Springs desire to protect the established character of the community by 

developing, enacting, and maintaining an architectural and aesthetic vision for all development. 

This vision consists of I) the Design Review Commission, a body of citizens appointed to review 

and approve all proposed commercial and multi-family building(s) exterior appearances, 

including the architecture, landscaping, signs, site lighting and non-residential entrances, and 2) a 

Design Guidelines Manual, a collection of the principles and design standards that the Design 

Review Commission applies to the applications it reviews.  

 

The primary goals of this architectural and aesthetic vision are to protect the community's 

identity, enhance and protect property values, and promote economic development. These factors, 

as they relate to the aforementioned commercial and residential development, are critical 

elements in developing and maintaining an attractive and thriving municipality. Through the 

successful implementation of the Design Review process and guidelines, the Town of Kingston 

Springs intends to secure its character, heritage, and small town charm for many generations to 

come. 

 

 



 
 

Adopted M
Kingston Sp

I.  INT
  WA.
  BB.
  PUC.

II.  COM
  CA.
  MB.

III.  ARC
  BA.
  FAB.
  RC.
  MD.

IV.  STR
  SA.
  SB.

V.  LAN
  LA.
  OB.
  SC.
  UD.
  LE.
  SF.

VI.  LIG
  GA.
  SB.

VII.  SIG
  GA.
  SB.

VIII. EXI
  RA.

IX.  DEF

  

arch 8, 2012 
prings Design Gu

TRODUCTIO
WHAT IS DE
BASIS FOR D

URPOSE OF

MPATIBILI
COMPATIBIL
MASSING ....

CHITECTUR
BUILDING H

ACADES ....
ROOFS ..........
MATERIALS 

REETSCAPE
TREETSCAP
ITE ELEMEN

NDSCAPING
LANDSCAPE
OPEN SPACE

CREENING 
UTILITIES LO
LANDSCAPE

TORM WAT

GHTING ......
GENERAL DE

ITE SPECIFI

GNAGE ........
GENERAL DE

IGN TYPES 

ISTING BUI
REHABILITA

FINITIONS 

uidelines 

ON ................
SIGN REVIE

DESIGN GUI
F THE DESIG

ITY, SITE D
LITY AND S
.....................

RAL CHAR
EIGHTS ......
.....................
.....................
.....................

E AND SITE
PE ................
NTS .............

G AND SCRE
E PLAN GEN
E ....................
.....................
OCATIONS .

E MAINTENA
TER MANAG

.....................
ESIGN CRIT
IC STANDAR

.....................
ESIGN CRIT
AND LOCA

ILDINGS AN
ATION AND 

.....................

TABLE O

.....................
EW ................
DELINE STA

GN GUIDELI

ESIGN AND
ITE DESIGN
.....................

RACTER .......
.....................
.....................
.....................
.....................

E ELEMENT
.....................
.....................

EENING .....
NERAL PROV

.....................

.....................

.....................
ANCE AND I
GEMENT ......

.....................
TERIA ...........
RDS .............

.....................
TERIA ...........
ATION ...........

ND SITES ....
IMPROVEM

.....................

-1- 

OF CONTE

......................

......................
ANDARDS ..
INES MANU

D MASSING
N ....................
......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

TS ..................
......................
......................

......................
VISIONS ......
......................
......................
......................
IRRIGATION
......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................
MENTS ..........

......................

ENTS 

.....................

.....................

.....................
UAL ..............

G ....................
.....................
.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................
N ..................
.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

....... 2 

....... 2 

....... 3 

....... 6 

....... 8 

....... 8 

....... 8 

....... 9 

..... 10 

..... 10 

..... 11 

..... 12 

..... 13 

..... 13 

..... 14 

..... 15 

..... 15 

..... 15 

..... 16 

..... 17 

..... 17 

..... 18 

..... 19 

..... 19 

..... 19 

..... 21 

..... 21 

..... 22 

..... 24 

..... 24 

..... 25 



 
 

Adopted M
Kingston Sp

I. IN

A

T
th
ae
to
pr

T
op
la
is
co

D
co
of
su
im

 

P

 

 

arch 8, 2012 
prings Design Gu

NTRODUC

 WHAT IA.

The purpose of
hat new devel
esthetic vision
o provide coh
rinciples.  

The Design Re
pen space and
andscaping, si
ssue considere
ontribute to a 

Design Review
ommunity app
f a proposed d
urroundings. D
mportant way

 

Protect Comm

 

uidelines 

CTION  

S DESIGN 

f Design Rev
lopment, or ch
n. Design Rev
esive develop

eview process
d natural featu
ite lighting, u
ed may appea
successful, q

w is an import
pearance and
development 
Design Revie

ys:  

munity Ident

Kingston Sp
preserved a
community
investment.
current res

REVIEW

iew is to prot
hanges to exis
view serves to
pment standar

s considers a w
ures, building

utility connect
ar individually
quality project

tant tool for p
d property valu

to consider it
ew benefits th

ity  

prings has a s
and enhanced
's existing hig
 Design Revi
idents and fut

-2- 

tect the establ
sting develop
o preserve the
rds and consis

wide range of
g scale and ma
tions and storm
y insignifican
t.  

protecting com
ues. It encour
ts context and

he community

small town ch
d. Additionally
gh quality of l
ew provides g
ture generatio

lished charact
pment, are con
e unique char
stency with a

f design issue
assing, archit

rm water deten
nt. However, c

mmunity char
rages the Tow
d how a proje
y and individu

harm and uni
y, Town leade
life and make
guiding princ
ons.  

ter of the Tow
nsistent with 
racter of King
adopted Open

es. These incl
tectural design
ntion/retentio
collectively, t

racter and enh
wn to look bey
ect will fit and
ual property o

ique history th
ers desire to i

e the Town mo
ciples to prote

 

wn, and to ens
the Town's 

gston Springs 
n Conservation

lude such thin
n, signs, 

on areas, etc. E
they can 

hancing 
yond the spec
d complement
owners in man

hat should be
improve the 
ore attractive
ect these asse

sure 

and 
n 

ngs as 

Each 

cifics 
t its 
ny 

e 

e for 
ts for 



 
 

Adopted M
Kingston Sp

E

 

 

 
 
 

 
B

T
D
D

1.

arch 8, 2012 
prings Design Gu

Enhance and 

Promo

 BASIS FOB.

The Town of K
Design Review
DRC is govern

. Compositi

The DRC 
as the King

uidelines 

Protect Prop

Design Rev
protected. J
residential 
the neighbo
and, in som

ote Economi

Design Rev
increased p
community 
Road), Mai
Review to p
and encour

OR DESIG

Kingston Spri
w Commission
ned by the fol

ion:  

shall consist o
gston Springs

perty Values

view serves pr
Just as traditi
neighborhoo

orhood is mai
me cases, enha

c Developme

view is an esp
private investm

goal. Areas s
in Street and K
protect and en
rage new deve

GN GUIDEL

ings City Com
n (DRC) by o
llowing provi

of nine (9) m
s Municipal R

-3- 

roperty owner
ional zoning p
d, Design Rev
intained. Impr
ance the value

ent  

pecially impor
ment and mai
such as the C
Kingston Spr
nhance public
elopment.  

LINE STAN

mmission crea
ordinance (Or
sions:  

embers and sh
Regional Plan

rs by ensuring
prevents landf
view seeks to 
rovements in 
e of private p

rtant tool for 
intaining an i

Corridor to Int
rings Road wi
c and private 

NDARDS 

ated the King
rdinance 2009

hould be com
nning Commis

g their invest
dfills from loc

ensure that t
the quality of

property.  

commercial d
image of vital
terstate 40 (L
ill increasingl
investments, 

gston Springs 
9*001) in Ma

mposed of the 
ssion. 

tment will be 
cating in a 
the character 
f design stabi

districts wher
lity is a comm

Luyben Hills 
ly rely on Des
and to suppo

Community 
arch 2009. Th

same membe

of 
ilize 

re 
mon 

sign 
ort 

 

he 

ership 



 
 

Adopted March 8, 2012 -4- 
Kingston Springs Design Guidelines 

It is desirable that at least one architect and one engineer serve on the board at all time, 
however, an individual with building experience may be substituted for the architect and an 
individual with construction experience may be substituted for the engineer, should there be 
no one to serve in those positions. 

2. Vacancies:  

Vacancy of members of the DRC should be filled in the same manner as those adopted by the 
Kingston Springs Municipal Regional Planning Commission.  

3. Meetings:  

Meetings of the DRC should be held on the second Thursday of each month at 7:00 p.m., 
prevailing time, at the Town meeting hall or such other place as may be designated by the 
Chairman. The Chairman is vested with the authority to cancel a meeting should there be no 
business to come before the DRC. A majority of the DRC may adopt rules and regulations to 
govern the procedure before the DRC.  

The requirements of a quorum of the DRC to conduct formal business: Sixty percent (60%) 
of the total membership of the board shall constitute a quorum, and the affirmative vote of a 
majority of the members serving on the board shall be necessary for any action to be taken by 
the board. The members shall serve without compensation, but each member shall be entitled 
to reimbursement for such member's actual and necessary expenses incurred in the 
performance of such member's official duties as established by the board. (Source: Tenn. 
Code Ann. § 13-13-104) 

4. Responsibilities:  

It shall be the duty of the DRC to develop general  guidelines and specific review procedures 
for construction or development of all non-residential properties, multi-family residential 
properties, and any entrances to nonresidential developments and to apply such procedures in 
either approving or disapproving proposals for such improvements in the Town of Kingston 
Springs.  

5. Building Applications - Submittals to Committee:  

Prior to application for a building permit all non-residential properties, multiple family 
residential properties, and any entrances to nonresidential developments shall be submitted to 
the DRC, along with plans, elevations and detailed landscape plans (distinguish how different 
from zoning requirement). A preliminary submittal prior to completion of detailed plans and 
specifications is recommended but not mandatory.  

6. Building Applications - Due consideration  

Within 30 days after an application shall have been submitted to the DRC, the Town staff 
shall examine same and present it to the members of the Committee for examination and 
determination of whether the proposed structure will conform to proper urban design 
standards and be conducive to the proper architectural development of the Town. At said 
meeting, the DRC shall examine the plans, elevations, and specifications, and any other 
evidence that may be pertinent or requested. The applicant or his representative is required to 



 
 

Adopted March 8, 2012 -5- 
Kingston Springs Design Guidelines 

appear at the Committee meeting. The DRC shall act as expeditiously as practicable and in no 
event shall any applicant be caused unreasonable delay.   

7. Building Applications - approval or disapproval  

At said meeting or at any meeting within fifteen (15) days subsequent thereto, the DRC shall 
approve the application if, in its opinion, the proposed development will conform to proper 
design standards and be conducive to the proper development of the Town. The DRC shall 
disapprove and return the application if it determines that the proposed development will be 
unsightly or unsuitable in appearance or detrimental to the environment of the community. 
However, the DRC may make comments and recommendations if it sees fit, toward the end 
of informing the applicant, the building official, and the City Commission why the proposal 
is unsuitable and what might be done to help bring it into conformance.  

8. Building Applications - issuance of permit:  

If the DRC approves the application, the Town staff may submit the plans to the building 
official for the permit. If the DRC returns the application with its disapproval and 
recommendations, the Town staff shall not submit the project for a building permit until such 
time as appropriate changes have been made and resubmitted in such form that meets the 
approval of the DRC. If, in the opinion of the Chairman of the DRC, the re-submittal clearly 
meets the design standards and recommendations of the DRC, he or she may approve the 
application for the Committee without further delay.  

9. Appeals:  

In the event any application is refused by the building official under the provisions of these 
Guidelines, the applicant may appeal to the City Commission to review the decision of the 
DRC at a regular meeting of the City Commission.  At said hearing, the City Commission 
shall listen to all parties who desire to be heard and after said hearing shall approve or 
disapprove the application. If the City Commission approves, the project may be submitted to 
the building official for approval.  

  



 
 

Adopted M
Kingston Sp

C

T
th
st
st
ex
bu
re
co
in
or
st

 

T

arch 8, 2012 
prings Design Gu

 

 PURPOSC.

This manual is
he application
tated in the Zo
tandards and r
xisting Zonin
uilders, busin
edevelopment
omplement th
ntended. In th
rdinances/cod
tringent shall 

The design sta

• Provid
for site

• Identif

• Encou
approa

• Provid

• Mainta

uidelines 

SE OF THE

s intended to i
ns before them
oning Ordina
regulations. D

ng Ordinance 
ness owners an
t or new cons
he Town's ord
he event that th
des, or other s
apply.  

andards do:  

de developers
e and building

fy important d

urage high qua
aches.  

de for reasona

ain as well as

E DESIGN G

identify the p
m. These stand
ance, Subdivis
DRC approva
and Subdivis
nd others sho
truction prior

dinances and r
here is a conf
standard(s) ad

s and design p
g design.  

design elemen

ality developm

able, logical, 

s enhance the 

-6- 

GUIDELINE

rinciples and 
dards do not r
sion Regulatio
l does not rel
ion Regulatio

ould consult th
r to preparing
regulations by
flict between 
dopted by any

professionals 

nts that are to

ment through

and timely re

quality of life

ES MANUA

design stand
reproduce all 
ons, or other 
lieve the appli
ons. Property 
hese standard

g their plans. T
y providing a
these standar

y Town board

with a clear a

o be maintain

h recommende

eview and app

fe for Town of

AL 

dards that the D
 the specific r
applicable de
icant of comp
owners, deve

ds when consi
These standar
a graphic expl
rds and other 
d or commissi

and equitable

ed or enhanc

ed appropriat

peal procedur

f Kingston Sp

DRC will app
requirements 
evelopment 
pliance with t
elopers, archit
idering 
rds are intend
lanation of wh
Town 
ion, the more 

e set of param

ced.  

te design 

res.  

prings residen

ply to 

the 
tects, 

ded to 
hat is 

meters 

nts.  



 
 

Adopted March 8, 2012 -7- 
Kingston Springs Design Guidelines 

• Reinforce civic pride of the Town’s citizens through attractive development.  

• Protect and enhance property values.  

• Increase awareness of aesthetic, social, ecological, and economic values.  

• Create a “sense of place”.  

 

The design standards do not: 

• Discourage growth within the Town of Kingston Springs.  

• Dictate stylistic design approaches or restrict creative design solutions  

 



 
 

Adopted M
Kingston Sp

II. C

A

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

B

T
sh

1

2

3

 

arch 8, 2012 
prings Design Gu

COMPATIB

 COMPAA.

. Evaluate e
existing na
with these 

. Site design
pedestrian 

. Provide ve
network he
by providi
getting in a

. Streets sho
or views to

. Developm
strong visu
should be 

. Building fo
features sp

. Buildings 
shall indic
window op

. Buildings 
“corporate

 
 MASSINB.

The building m
hould be focu

. Building m
activate pu

. To create a
along a blo

. Large, mon
building to
scale. 

uidelines 

BILITY, SIT

TIBILITY 

existing site co
atural and cul
features and 

n should cons
movement, i

ehicular, bicyc
elps reduce th
ng alternative
a vehicle to d

ould have vist
o open space.

ment sites with
ual relationsh
compatible. 

forms shall be
pecifically exi

are viewed in
ate how they 
penings, entry

should reflect
e” or “franchis

NG 

massing and s
used on how th

massing and o
ublic space an

a coherent str
ock, allowing

nolithic build
o create a tran

TE DESIGN

AND SITE 

onditions and
tural features
enhances the

sider adjacent 
nterconnectiv

cle and pedes
he volume of 
e routes.  Ped

do so.   

tas and termin
  Dwelling un

h multiple bui
ip between bu

e tailored to fi
isting trees an

n context with
are compatib

yways, roof ty

t the unique s
sed” style typ

cale plays a k
he project fits

orientation sho
nd streetscape

reetscape, bui
g for exception

dings are disco
nsition in size

-8- 

N AND MAS

DESIGN 

d identify site 
s of a site.  Pro
ir qualities. 

land uses and
vity, ingress/e

strian connect
traffic and ul
estrians shou

nate on a prom
nits should no

ldings should
uildings.  Lan

it within the e
nd vegetation

h other buildin
ble in regards 
ypes, and the 

style of the To
pically found 

key role in the
s within the c

ould place str
e.  

ldings should
ns associated 

ouraged. Use 
to adjacent r

SSING  

and surround
ovide a desig

d design, site
egress, and th

tivity. A well
ltimately impr

uld be able to 

minent buildi
ot align or loo

d contain com
ndscaping and

existing topog
.   

ngs in the imm
to mass, plac
degree of det

own and not d
with big-box 

e character of
community.  

rong visual em

d maintain a s
with a specia

 smaller sub-
residential stru

ding features. 
gn strategy tha

e size, location
he proposed u

-designed, hi
roves livabili
access adjace

ng façade, lar
ok down alley

mpatible desig
d exterior arch

graphy of the 

mediate vicin
cement, scale,
tail. 

develop accor
 or other natio

f the developm

mphasis on th

similar floor t
al uses such a

volumes in th
uctures that a

 Design with 
at is compatib

n, vehicular a
se of the site.

ghly-connect
ty in commun

ent uses witho

rge existing tr
y ways. 

gn elements an
hitectural elem

site and the s

nity and desig
, and proporti

rding to a stan
onal business

ment. The des

he street in ord

to floor height
as an entryway

he massing of
are smaller in 

the 
ble 

and 
 

ted 
nities 
out 

rees 

nd a 
ments 

site 

gn 
ion of 

ndard 
ses. 

sign 

der to 

t 
y. 

f a 



 
 

Adopted March 8, 2012 -9- 
Kingston Springs Design Guidelines 

4. All buildings are encouraged to encompass three defined elements: a “base” consisting of 
storefronts and belt course; a middle zone that is less detailed than the other two areas; and a 
“cap” consisting of a eaves, cornice, etc. at the top of a building. Buildings may have 
appropriate form and proportion as reflected in the tradition of vernacular, historic buildings. 
Buildings should face the street with the façade aligned with the front property line. Angled 
or non-rectilinear buildings, unless relating to the street alignment, may be considered 
inappropriate. 

5. The building should maintain a consistent line along the front setback except to provide 
recesses for architectural interest.  Acceptable examples include a special corner feature, 
outdoor dining or mid-block pedestrian passageway.  

6. Buildings should establish a rhythm with variations in windows, doors, trim and balconies for 
added visual interest. Wall offsets, breaks in roof/cornice line, and material changes provide 
longer buildings distinct massing & vertical proportioning.  

7. Building Orientation  

a) Buildings should be oriented such that their main entrances are visible from the public 
right-of-way and streets located therein.  

b) Building service areas, loading and utility areas should not be visible from public streets.  
Such service areas should be located behind the facade of the main structure. Review of 
local sanitation company criteria is essential in the placement and number of sanitation 
collection service areas.  

c) Primary entrances to office and retail buildings should be oriented to the public right-of-
way, with secondary entrances opening to parking areas.  

8. Corner Lots 

a) Buildings on corner lots should be designed to have two fronts and should have special 
architectural elements, such as wrap-around porches and building massing to accentuate 
corners and terminating views. 

b) Corners lots should generally be larger in size than adjacent lots. 

 

III. ARCHITECTURAL CHARACTER 

Building design and architectural character is a key element in the built environment that 
contributes to Kingston Springs’ success and prosperity as a community.  The building design 
guidelines contained herein are intended to help protect the integrity and enhance the value of the 
Town’s existing neighborhoods by articulating to the development community those design 
values and preferences that the Town has determined will result in a high-quality built 
environment and improved quality of life. 

Prototype designs shall be adapted to reflect the Town of Kingston Springs design standards and 
should be compatible with the site’s immediate surroundings. Careful siting, site design, use of 
compatible materials and colors, and landscaping are some of the ways that a franchise design is 
expected to adapt to blend with its surroundings.  

 



 
 

Adopted M
Kingston Sp

A

B
he
di
lim
in
re

 

B

1

2

3

4

arch 8, 2012 
prings Design Gu

 BUILDINA.

Building heigh
eights are spe
istricts. A ma
mitations sha

ntended for hu
eview by the D

 FACADEB.

. Considerat
discernible
storefront, 
provide a m

. Buildings 
maximum 
public righ
from the p
should use
the buildin

. Facades al
inviting pe
public righ

. Facades th
beyond the

uidelines 

NG HEIGH

hts shall confo
ecifically regu
aximum of 35
all not apply to
uman occupan
DRC. 

ES  

tion should be
e features, dep
porch or stoo

more tradition

should avoid 
permitted wi

ht-of-way. Lo
ublic right-of

e varied setbac
ng. 

long public st
edestrian stree
ht-of-way are 

hat appear flat
e primary elev

HTS 

orm to the To
ulated not to e
 feet height is
o civic buildi
ncy; however

e given to cre
pth and does 
op at entrance
nal storefront

a long uninte
idth of an unin
onger width m
f-way and/or p
cks or archite

treets shall be
et-front.  Und
discouraged.

t or “Stage-se
vation of the b

-10- 

own of Kingst
exceed 35 fee
s permitted w
ings with belf
r all architectu

eate a strong f
not appear ar
es. The DRC 
or porch in o

errupted facad
nterrupted pla

may be consid
public open s

ectural details

 treated in a m
differentiated 
 

et” facades are
building.  Th

ton Springs Z
et in height in

within the indu
fries, cupolas,
ural features l

front building
rchitecturally 
may require c

order to reflec

de plane.  Bla
ane shall be 2

dered for indu
spaces. Buildi
s to reduce the

manner which
and bland fac

e not acceptab
he materials an

Zoning Regula
n all commerc
ustrial district
, spires and d
listed above s

g façade wall 
flat.  Buildin
commercial b
ct the unique 

ank walls shal
25 feet as view
ustrial uses or 
ings that have
e perceived le

h creates an a
cades that are

ble. Aesthetic
nd colors util

ations.  Build
cial and office
t. The height 
omes that are
shall be subje

that provides
ngs should hav
buildings to 
style of the T

ll be avoided.
wed from the 
facades not s

e long walls 
ength and ma

attractive and 
e visible from 

c consideratio
ized on the st

ding 
e zone 

e not 
ect to 

 

s 
ve a 

Town. 

. The 

seen 

ss of 

the 

ons go 
treet 



 
 

Adopted M
Kingston Sp

5

6

7

8

9

10

C

In
in
ro

O
ex
vi

arch 8, 2012 
prings Design Gu

face shall w
create visu

. Where a cl
should inc
doors, rhyt

. Rear and s
their archit

. Window a

c) Pilaste
used to
rhythm

. Use of Sim

a) In ord
the cen
the col

b) A com
Review

. Use of Sim

a) A cons
Center

b) Buildi
identit

0. Where a si
surroundin
buildings s
the same, b
from surro
passerby.  

 

 ROOFS C.

n order to enh
nclude both ty
oofs including

On all building
xtended parap
isual weight a

uidelines 

wrap around 
ual depth. 

learly establis
lude the key d
thm of bays, d

side facades, i
tectural treatm

nd door open

ers, variations
o break up the
m to surround

milar Building

er to achieve
nter, includin
lor and mater

mprehensive b
w Committee

milar Architec

sistent archite
r, in particular

ng entrances 
ty. 

ite or building
ng sites in term
should blend 
but to have de

ounding devel

hance the arch
ypical “flat” f
g gable, hippe

gs where the f
pets, projectin
and proportio

corners and s

shed developm
design elemen
detailing, roo

if visible from
ment. Materia

nings shall hav

s in the roof li
e mass of a si

ding buildings

g Materials in

 unity betwee
ng out parcel b
rials palette ap

building mate
 for approval

ctural Styles o

ectural style o
r, to tie out pa

are appropria

g is not part o
ms of buildin
within the de
evelopments o
lopments whe

hitecture, roof
façade with pa
ed, shed roofs

facade wall m
ng cornices or
n to the build

-11- 

should continu

ment characte
nts of surroun

of forms, mate

m public stree
als should be 

ve proportion

ine or parapet
ingle building
s. 

n a Commerci

en all buildin
buildings, sha
pproved for th

erials and col
with the first

or Theme in a

or theme shou
arcel building

ate locations t

of a Commerc
g materials, c
velopment.  T
of high qualit
ere stark contr

fs should draw
arapet walls a
s and dormers

meets the roof
r decorative m
ding. 

ue on the side

er and scale e
nding buildin
erials and colo

ets, shall be si
of high qualit

ns similar to th

t wall, and bu
g into distinct

ial Center 

ngs in a Com
all be constru
he center. 

lor palette sh
t building of a

a Commercial

uld be used th
gs to the prim

to express ind

cial Center, th
colors and arc
The intent is n
ty design and
rasts are not e

w upon histor
along the stree
s. 

f provide artic
moldings to g

es and rear of

exist, new in-f
ngs with respe
ors. 

imilar to the p
ty (See D: Ma

hose on adjoi

uilding wall re
t vertical bays

mmercial Cent
ucted of build

hall be submi
a commercial

l Center. 

hroughout a C
mary building(

dividual build

he architecture
chitectural sty
not for all dev

d materials tha
evident to the

rical preceden
et edge and c

culation and d
give the roof/c

f the structure

fill developm
ect to window

primary facad
aterials). 

ining building

ecesses shall 
s which maint

ter, all buildin
ding materials

itted to the D
l developmen

Commercial 
(s). 

ding character

e should cons
yle. These 
velopments to
at transition w
e visitor or 

nts. This may 
olonial sloped

detailing such
cornice area p

es to 

ment 
ws, 

de in 

gs. 

be 
tain a 

ngs in 
s from 

Design 
nt.  

r or 

sider 

o look 
well 

d 

h as 
proper 



 
 

Adopted M
Kingston Sp

1

2

3

D

E

1

2

3

4

arch 8, 2012 
prings Design Gu

. Pitched roo
roof forms
similar fea

a) Breaku

b) Pitche
meanin

. Parapets ar
corners by

a) Parape
appear

b) Cornic
sides o

c) The fo
such a

. Green roof
membrane
encourage

 

 MATERID.

Exterior buildi

. Primary fa
occur only

. Primary B
windows, 
stone, mar
as primary
in no case 
of the abov
Design Re
of the buil

. Secondary
up to 10% 
the purpos
exterior in

. For industr
along King
or other m
exclusive o
way and pu
remaining 

uidelines 

ofs are recom
s or pitches m
atures. 

up long pitche

d roof height
ng the roof sh

re recommen
y a minimum o

et walls fronti
r flat.  

ce lines shoul
of the street, w

orm of the roo
as plumbing st

fs, which can 
e, are encoura
d on roofs bu

IALS 

ing materials 

açade materia
y at inside cor

uilding Mater
doors, roofs a

rble, limeston
y building mat

shall the prim
ve-listed prim

eview Commi
ding, and coll

y Building Ma
of the elevati

se of accent. A
sulation and f

rially-zoned p
gston Springs

major corridors
of all window
ublic open sp
area visible t

mmended to ha
may be conside

ed roof lines 

s from eave to
hould not be t

ded to be use
of 18” on cor

ing a street m

d relate betw
when appropr

of or cornice s
tacks and ven

be used to m
ged. Other su

ut should be in

shall be high 

ls should wra
rners; changin

rials:  The pri
and walkway 
e and wood. C
terials. Other 

mary building
mary building 
ittee and the d
laborate in se

aterials: Secon
ions, exclusiv

Acceptable se
finishing syst

properties tilt
s Road, the co
s as determine

ws, doors, roo
pace may be c
to the public s

-12- 

ave slopes be
ered for small

with offsets a

o peak should
taller than the

d on sloped r
rners or if the 

may include th

een buildings
riate.  

should hide m
nts, from view

mitigate stormw
ustainable solu
ncorporated in

quality and d

ap around exte
ng at exterior 

imary materia
covers, shall 
Cement stucc
materials ma

g material be a
materials. In

design profess
electing appro

ndary materia
ve of all wind
econdary build
tems (EIFS), o

-up concrete w
orridor locatio
ed by the DR
fs, and walkw

constructed of
shall be those

etween 3:12 an
l roof section

and dormers.

d not exceed t
e building wal

roofing 1-in-1
adjoining bu

hree-dimensio

s to help unify

mechanical eq
w of streets an

water and ma
utions, such a
nto the overal

durable mater

erior corners.
corners is ina

als for exterio
be natural m

co and fiber ce
ay be consider
a material sim
consideration

sional should
opriate materi

als for exterio
dows, doors, r
ding material
or precast con

wall panels m
ons adjacent t

RC.  No more 
way covers, v
f tilt-up on a b
e materials lis

and 12:12; how
ns over porche

the height fro
ll supporting 

12 or less and 
uilding is rece

onal cornice tr

y the architec

quipment and 
nd sidewalks. 

ay extend the 
as solar panel
ll design. 

rials subject to

. A change in 
appropriate. 

or wall surfac
materials such 

ement board 
red on a case

mulated to giv
n of alternate 

d consider the 
ials for the arc

or wall surfac
roofs, and wa
ls include prec
ncrete, and te

may be used, e
to Interstate 4
than 60% of 
isible from th
building’s ext
ted above for

wever, alterna
es, entryways

om grade to ea
the roof.  

 should wrap 
ssed. 

reatments so n

cture along bo

roof penetrat

life of the roo
ls, are also 

o the followin

material shou

es, exclusive 
as clay brick,
may also be u
-by-case basi

ve the appeara
 materials, th
architectural 

chitectural sty

es may be use
lkway covers
cast concrete

extured block.

except for fro
40 or Highway
the wall area,

he public righ
terior. The 
r the primary 

ative 
s, or 

ave - 

not to 

oth 

tions, 

ofing 

ng: 

uld 

of all 
, 
used 
is, but 
ance 
e 
style 

yle. 

ed for 
s, for 
, 
.   

ontage 
y 70 
, 

ht-of-



 
 

Adopted M
Kingston Sp

5

6

7

8

IV. S

A

A
ar
m
sh

A
co
pr
to
st

A

1

2

arch 8, 2012 
prings Design Gu

building m
rear of a bu
elevation o

. Where the 
ingress/egr
DRC may 
building m
proof lying

. Non-prefer
all window
concrete b
(including 

. Exterior fi
are preferr
approved f

. The color 
of the buil

TREETSCA

 STREETA.

Active, attracti
re an importa

mind, whether 
hopkeeper or 

All Streets con
orrespond wit
rovide parkin
o the urban ch
treet furnishin

All streetscape

. Limit curb

. Street Tree
landscapin
Standard f

a) Street 
inch ca
and rep
with th

b) Avoid 
extend

uidelines 

materials. The 
uilding not ge
of the building

rear of the bu
ress easement
consider up t

materials. This
g with the app

rred exterior b
ws, doors, roo
lock, metal, p
pvc and ureth

nish colors sh
red over stark
for building a

of door and w
ding. 

APE AND S

TSCAPE 

ive streets are
nt part of crea
young or old
café patron.  

nsist of vehicu
th the adjacen

ng capacity an
haracter of eac
ngs, lighting, 

es shall adhere

b cuts by prov

es: Tree speci
ng shall be ins
for Nursery St

trees shall be
aliper upon ti
placed if dead
he DRC as lot

the bucket ef
d beyond the p

DRC shall ha
enerally visib
g does not ab

uilding is not/
t and does no
to 50% of the
s exception w
plicant on the

building mate
ofs, and walkw
plywood, synt
hane trim), or

hould fit into 
k or bright col
accents.  

window frami

SITE ELEM

e critical to th
ating livable c

d, motorist or 
 

ular lanes and
nt land use i.e
nd may includ
ch neighborh
and street tre

e to the follow

viding shared 

ies are an esse
stalled and me
tock, vigorou

e planted appr
ime of plantin
d. Street trees
ts/ parcels are

ffect: when pl
placement of 

-13- 

ave the discre
ble from a pub
but a residenti

/will not be v
ot abut a resid
 rear of the bu

will be reviewe
e question of v

erials on non-
way covers, in
thetic stucco, 
r similar prod

the context o
ors. Full chro

ing systems sh

MENTS 

he growth and
communities 
bicyclist, wal

d the streetsid
e. wider lanes 
de dedicated b
ood. It may in
es. 

wing provisio

access or util

ential compon
eet the quality

us, healthy and

roximately 40
ng and limbed
s type, exact c
e developed.

lanting trees, 
the plant. 

etion to permi
blic right-of w
ially-zoned pr

visible from th
dential develop
uilding to be 
ed on a case b
visibility.   

-industrially z
nclude the fol
 vinyl or alum

ducts. 

of the built env
oma colors are

hould be com

d future succe
and should b
lker or wheel

de zone. The v
 for denser us
bicycle lanes.
nclude pedest

ons:    

lizing alleys  

nent of the str
y requiremen
d free of disea

0 ft on center 
d up to 7 ft. St
cultivar, and p

provide non-

it metal facad
way, and wher
roperty. 

he public righ
pment or zon
constructed w

by case basis 

zoned propert
llowing: expo
minum siding

vironment. Su
e discouraged

mpatible with 

ss of Kingsto
be created wit
lchair user, bu

vehicular lane
ses. The vehic
 The streetsid
trian paths, la

for vehicular 

reetscape des
nts outlined in
ases or infest

and be a min
treet trees mu
placement mu

-compacted so

des on the sid
re that side or

ht-of-way or 
ning district, th
with secondar
with the burd

ties, exclusive
osed or painte
g, plastic mate

ubtle earth to
d but may be 

the overall de

on Springs. St
th everyone in
us rider, 

e widths shou
cular lanes m
de zone contri
andscaped pla

access.  

ign. All 
n the America
ations. 

imum of 2.5 t
ust be maintai
ust be coordin

oil for roots t

de and 
r rear 

he 
ry 
den of 

e of 
ed 
erials 

nes 

esign 

treets 
n 

uld 
may 

ibutes 
anters, 

an 

to 3 
ined 
nated 

o 



 
 

Adopted M
Kingston Sp

3

B

S
pl
ap
se

1

2

3

4

 

arch 8, 2012 
prings Design Gu

c) Tree g

. The sidew
limited exc
Sidewalks 
planted be
utility line
the sidewa
Coordinate

 SITE ELB.

ite elements, 
lacemaking a
ppropriate on
ense of comm

. Furniture  

a) Furnitu

b) Furnitu
design

c) Furnitu

d) Colors

. Outdoor D

a) Restau

b) The u
develo

c) No com

d) Canva

e) Outdo

. Art, Water

a) The us
that en

. Miscellane

a) Coord
materi

b) Plante

c) Bike r
pedest

uidelines 

grates shall be

alk should be
ceptions inclu
should be inc
tween the cur
s or undergro

alk and shall b
e with standar

LEMENTS 

such as furnit
and the visitor
n all sites. How
munity, create 

ure should be

ure should be
n of the develo

ure colors sho

s such as crea

Dining  

urants are enc

use of any u
opment in term

mmercial sign

as umbrellas s

or dining area

r Features  

se of public a
nhance the sit

eous 

inated trash 
ial. 

rs made of du

acks should b
trian circulatio

e modular and

e set back a m
uding where p
corporated wi
rb and sidewa
ound utilities. 
be of a specie
rd road sectio

ture, amenitie
r's overall exp
wever, coordi
places for pe

e provided to 

e of high-qua
opment.  

ould be of a n

am, black and 

couraged to pr

umbrella cov
ms of color an

nage on umbr

should be of a

as should be k

art, water foun
e may be app

receptacles 

urable materia

be provided an
on.  

-14- 

d allow for rem

minimum of fiv
plaza spaces a
ithin a landsc
alk, unless suc
In such cases
s that will no

ons and existin

es and public 
perience. The 
inated and we
eople to gathe

allow for visi

ality material

natural color. 

dark green ar

rovide for out

vering shall 
nd design.  

rellas should b

a flame-retard

kept clean and

ntains and oth
propriate.  

made of me

als should be 

nd located so

moval as tree

ve feet (5') fr
are provided a
caped pedestri
ch plantings w
s ornamental 

ot interfere wi
ng conditions

spaces within
addition of s

ell-placed elem
er, focal point

itor resting pl

ls and should

 

re appropriate

tdoor dining s

be coordinat

be visible fro

dant, mildew-r

d free of litter

her water feat

etal, wrought

compatible w

o as not to inte

es grow. 

rom the back 
and extend to
ian way, stree
would interfe
trees shall be

ith overhead w
s. 

n a site contri
ite elements m
ments can pro
ts and promin

laces, eating o

d coordinate w

e.  

spaces.  

ted with the

om the public 

resistant fabr

r.  

tures and arch

t iron, stone

with other site

erfere with ve

of the curb w
o the curb. 
et trees shall b
ere with overh
e planted behi
wires at matur

ibute to 
may not be 
ovide for a gr

nence of a site

or gathering. 

with the scal

e character o

right-of-way

ric.  

hitectural elem

 or other du

e elements. 

ehicular and 

with 

be 
head 
ind 
rity. 

reater 
e.  

le and 

of the 

y. 

ments 

urable 



 
 

Adopted M
Kingston Sp

V. L

L
di
ne
S

A

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

B

1

arch 8, 2012 
prings Design Gu

LANDSCAP

Landscaping c
istinctive iden
ew projects c
ee Kingston S

 LANDSCA.

. Preserve e
and a sens
property an

. The remov
developed 
site and/or

. All new de
multi-fami
modified s
Architect. 

. Landscape
should be 
areas, arou
structures 

. Landscapin
from the p
streets and

. Prohibited
Plant Coun
are natural

. Rain garde
cleaning ru

 OPEN SPB.

. Open Spac
and visitor
features ar

a) Calcul
space i
purpos
space m
plantin
playgr
parkin

uidelines 

PING AND S

an add value,
ntity in a distr
an help reflec
Springs Zonin

CAPE PLAN

xisting trees. 
e of place. Re
nd negatively

val or clear cu
sites is prohi

r subdivision p

evelopments, 
ily residential
shall be requir
 

e plans shall in
located along

und buildings 
and retention

ng shall defin
ublic street.  L

d shall not con

d Plant Materi
ncil’s Invasiv
lly drought to

ens and biosw
unoff from im

PACE  

ce: Many type
rs for passive 
re encouraged

lations: Overa
is classified a
ses and not in
may include g
ngs, buffer scr
rounds, and na
ng facilities, d

SCREENIN

, create pleasa
rict. By enhan
ct the area’s n
ng Ordinance

N GENERA

Preserving m
emoving trees
y affect the ch

utting of trees
ibited, except 
plan.  

whether publ
l property wh
red to submit 

nclude all des
g the public bo

and building
n areas.   

ne the buildin
Landscaping 
nflict with ped

ials: Any spec
ve List. Recom
olerant. 

wales are enco
mperious surfa

es of Open Sp
and active re

d in open spac

all developme
as space used 
ncluding the m
greenways, sp
reening, biosw
atural areas. C

driveways, and

-15- 

NG 

ant spaces tha
ncing, preserv
natural heritag
 Section 3.15

AL PROVIS

mature trees in
s can reduce t
haracter of the

s and other ex
as otherwise 

lic or private,
here the site or

a Landscape 

signated comm
oundaries of a

g entries, and a

g entries, as w
should not im

destrian conn

cies designate
mmended Plan

ouraged and s
aces.  

pace are enco
ecreation. Pub
ces. 

ent should pro
for active or 

minimum lot a
ports fields, la
wales, rain ga
Calculations f
d storage or s

at attract peop
ving and prot
ge and provid
5 for Landscap

SIONS 

n new develop
the aesthetic, 
e Town. 

xisting vegetat
 permitted in 

, and all exist
r the exterior 
 Plan stamped

mon areas an
a site, includi
along drainag

well as the en
mpede visibili
nectivity.  

ed invasive by
nt Materials: 

should be used

ouraged to ser
blic art, other 

ovide a minim
passive recre
area required 
andscaped pa
ardens, open l
for open spac
service areas.

ple, and help t
ecting the sce

de a pleasing l
pe treatment. 

pments helps 
resale, or ren

tion on undev
accordance w

ting commerc
of the buildin
d by a registe

nd open space
ing site entran
ge or storm w

ntrances to the
ity from entra

y the Tenness
Native and ad

d as a means 

rve the needs 
amenities, an

mum of 20% o
eational or res

for any hous
arking islands
lawns, pocke

ce may not inc

to develop a 
enic landscap
local environm

to create valu
ntal value of a

veloped or un
with an appro

cial, industrial
ng is to be 
ered Landscap

e.  Landscapin
nces and park

water managem

e developmen
ances onto pu

see Exotic Pes
dapted plants

of collecting 

of both citize
nd interactive 

open space. O
source protect
ing type. Ope

s, foundation 
t parks, 
clude building

e, 
ment. 

ue 
a 

nder-
oved 

l or 

pe 

ng 
king 
ment 

nt 
ublic 

st 
s that 

and 

ens 

Open 
tion 
en 

gs, 



 
 

Adopted M
Kingston Sp

C

W
m
in
co

1

2

 

arch 8, 2012 
prings Design Gu

b) Access
open s
the op

c) Seatin
benche
 

 SCREENC.

When possible
meters should 
n the case of a
onceal areas f

. Surface Pa

a) Parkin
includ
aisles, 

b) All per
screen

c) Parkin
strip a 
share e
proper
on the 

. Garbage co
containers 
located wi

a) Dump
the des

b) Dump
with ap
materi

c) The sc
more t
loaded
closed

d) For co
to the 

e) For res
an opa

f) Grocer
provid
design

uidelines 

s: Open space
space.  Buildin
en space shal

g: Types of s
es, seat walls,

NING  

e, surface park
be located ou

a conflicting l
from public v

arking  

ng area screen
ing, but not li
the outdoor d

rimeter lands
ned with everg

ng areas shall 
minimum of 

equally in the
rty line to scre
internal com

ollection area
shall be set in
thin any desig

ster enclosure
sired number 

ster enclosure
ppropriate pla
ial from which

creening of al
than eight fee
d or emptied a
d.  The door fr

ompaction uni
sanitary sewe

staurants, ext
aque enclosur

ry cart storag
ded within the
n of the buildi

e should be ea
ngs that are p
ll have a mini

eating that ar
, planter ledg

king, loading 
ut of the publi
land uses, pro

view. 

ning and lands
imited to, pub
display of aut

cape strips vi
green shurbs a

be separated 
f five feet in w
e establishmen
een parking.  

mmon property

as including d
n a location th
gnated streets

es shall be loc
of receptacle

es shall be co
ant material. T
h the principa

l dumpsters s
t. Doors shall

and the doors 
ramework sha

its the concret
er.  

erior grease c
re similar to th

e should be c
e interior of th
ing frontage. 

-16- 

asily accessib
part of the sam
mum of one p

e encouraged
es and seating

areas, dumps
ic view from t
ovide landscap

scaping stand
blic and priva
tomobiles and

isible from th
a minimum o

from adjacen
width minimu
nt of a 5ft min
With a shared

y line of the tw

dumpsters, tra
hat is at the re
scape. The fol

cated on a con
es.  

nstructed of b
The dumpster
al use was con

shall be at leas
l be in a close
shall have a u

all be of meta

te pad shall h

collection dev
he dumpster e

concealed from
he building, o

ble and, gener
me developme
pedestrian en

d include mov
g steps. 

sters, HVAC 
the right-of-w
ping to visual

dards shall app
ate parking fac
d other vehicl

he public stree
of 24” tall or m

nt side lot line
um. However,
n. planting str
d parking agr
wo owners is 

ash, refuse, co
ear of the bui
llowing criter

ncrete pad of

brick and/or m
r enclosure sh
nstructed.  

st two feet tal
ed position wh
usable latch t

al construction

have a floor ou

vices shall be 
enclosure.  

m public view
or if outside, b

rally, lots sho
ent as the ope

ntrance on the

vable individu

units, electric
way. When it 
l and physica

ply to all surf
cilities, drive
les that are fo

ets and open s
may include a

es by a perime
, two adjacent
rip along the 
reement and a
 required. 

ompactors, an
ildings or site
ria shall apply

f sufficient siz

masonry wall
hall be constr

ller than the d
hen the dump
to ensure that
n.  

utside drain, w

located unde

w. Storage of 
be incorporate

uld front onto
en space and a
e open space.

ual seats, fixe

cal boxes and
is not feasibl

al separate and

face parking l
ways and acc
r sale or lease

space should b
a fence or wal

eter landscap
t properties m
internal comm
access, no scr

nd recyclable 
e and shall not
y:  

ze to accomm

s, and screene
ructed of a sim

dumpster, but
pster is not be
t they can stay

which ties dir

erground or w

carts should b
ed into the ex

o 
abut 

d 

d 
le or 
d and 

lots 
cess 
e. 

be 
ll. 

e 
may 
mon 
reen 

t be 

modate 

ed 
milar 

t no 
eing 
y 

rectly 

within 

be 
xterior 



 
 

Adopted M
Kingston Sp

D

1

2

 

E

1

2

3

4

arch 8, 2012 
prings Design Gu

 UTILITID.

. Gas, Electr

a) Plans s
the typ
opaque

b) Transf
and wi
side of

c) Mecha
When 
fence o
public

. Mechanica

a) The lo
be iden

b) Groun
view w

c) Roof-m
from p
such it
not acc
incorp
such it

 LANDSCE.

. All planted
designed a
landscape 
originally 

. Irrigation s
on all new
individuall

. Irrigation b
not be loca

. Irrigation s
surface bu
grade. 

uidelines 

IES LOCAT

ric Meters an

shall show th
pe of screenin
e fence wall o

formers shall 
idth at the tim
f the transform

anical equipm
mechanical e
or wall or a su
.  

al units, vents

ocation of all g
ntified on the

nd-mounted m
with an opaqu

mounted mec
public view. W
tems from nei
ceptable. Ven

porated into th
tems.  

CAPE MAIN

d areas install
and approved 
material shal
approved Lan

should be pro
w construction

ly based on th

backflow prev
ated within a 

systems shou
t allow for dr

TIONS 

nd Transforme

e locations of
ng proposed u
or evergreen h

be screened w
me of planting
mer used for a

ment on roofs 
equipment is g
uitable evergr

s, plumbing an

ground and ro
e plans with th

mechanical and
ue fence, wall

hanical and a
Where parape
ighboring pro
nts, pipes and 
he design of th

NTENANC

led by the dev
by the DRC f
l be removed
ndscape Plan.

ovided to ensu
n. Existing and
he complexiti

venters shoul
required stree

ld be installed
rip or low-flow

-17- 

er Locations (

f all meters, g
utility meters 
hedge that scr

with evergree
g. An area of f
access.  

or sides of a b
ground moun
reen hedge th

nd heating  

oof-mounted 
he type of scre

d air conditio
 or evergreen

air conditionin
ets are used, th
operties and ri

other rooftop
he building. T

E AND IRR

veloper shoul
for the life of
by the prope

.  

ure sufficient 
d renovated la
ies of providin

ld be screened
etscape area. 

d below groun
w systems in 

(subject to uti

gas and electri
shall be scree
reens objectio

en landscape m
fifteen (15 ') f

building shall
nted, screening
hat screens ob

mechanical a
eening propo

oning units sh
n hedge that sc

ng units, vent
hey must be o
ights-of-way.
p items on a p
The use of do

RIGATION

ld be privately
f the project. A
erty owner and

longevity and
andscaped are
ng irrigation. 

d or concealed
 

nd with spray
plant beds, w

ility company

ic and must b
ened from pub
onable views.

materials of s
feet shall rem

l not be visib
g shall includ

bjectionable v

and air condit
osed.  

hall be screene
creens object

ts and pipes m
of a height to 
. Individual ro
pitched roof m
ormers is one w

N  

y maintained 
All dead and/
d replanted p

d health of th
eas will be ev
 

d. Backflow p

y hood flush w
which are not 

y requirement

be identified w
blic view with
.  

sufficient heig
main open on t

le from street
de either an op
view from the 

ioning units m

ed from publi
tionable view

must be screen
completely s

ooftop screen
must be 
way to conce

as originally 
/or dying 
er the DRC's 

he planting are
valuated 

preventers sh

with the groun
typically belo

ts): 

with 
h an 

ght 
the 

ts. 
paque 

must 

ic 
s.  

ned 
screen 
ns are 

eal 

eas 

ould 

nd 
ow 



 
 

Adopted M
Kingston Sp

5

F

A
Im
cr
fo
in
 
M
fa
ru
si
be
ra
m

A
an
ex

A

1

2

3

arch 8, 2012 
prings Design Gu

. All landsca
within 100
will be pro

 STORM F.

As more sites i
mpervious spa
reate significa
orested or me
nfrastructure c

Managing stor
acilities. The r
unoff stipulate
ite runoff requ
e incorporate
ain gardens, p

manage stormw

All drainage sh
nd shall be ap
xisting storm 

All detention a

. Detention 
Stormwate

. Landscapin
landscapin

. In basins th
or other m

uidelines 

aped parking 
0 feet of new p
ovided. 

WATER M

in the commu
aces such as b
ant amounts o
adow areas, d
cost. 

rmwater at its 
rate of post-d
ed in the Tow
uires detentio
d into the ove

porous pavem
water run-off

hall conform 
pproved by th
water faciliti

areas shall inc

basins may sh
er Manageme

ng shall be pr
ng of the site. 

hat retain wat
measures shoul

islands shoul
plant materia

MANAGEM

unity are deve
buildings and
of runoff. By 
developments

source may r
development p
wn of Kingston
on areas, the a
erall landscap

ment, overland
f.  

to the Town o
he Town Engi
ies.  

corporate the 

hould be desi
nt Regulation

rovided so as 
 

ter, the water
ld be provide

-18- 

ld be irrigated
l and a descri

MENT  

eloped, the am
d parking lots 
reducing law

s can mitigate

reduce impac
peak runoff at
n Springs Stor
areas shall be 
ping of the site
d drainage and

of Kingston S
neer prior to 

following sta

igned to the st
ns.  

to provide a 

should not re
d to aerate the

d or the applic
iption of how

mounts of stor
contribute to

wn area and pr
e adverse imp

ct of peak wat
t site boundar
rmwater Man
designed as a
e. Techniques
d detention po

Springs Storm
construction 

andards:  

tandards in th

visual amenit

emain stagnan
e water surfac

cant shall pro
w the landscap

rmwater runo
o the runoff bu
reserving or p
acts and pote

ter discharges
ries cannot be
nagement Reg
a visual amen
s such as gree
onds should b

mwater Manag
or alteration i

he Town of Ki

ty within the 

nt for over 48
ce for wet po

ovide a hose b
pe maintenanc

off increase. 
ut also lawn a
providing for 
entially lower 

s on downstre
e greater than
gulations. Wh
nity for the sit
enroofs, biosw
be utilized to 

gement Ordin
in the case of

ingston Sprin

overall 

8 hours. Foun
nds. 

bib 
ce 

areas 

eam 
n peak 
here 
te and 
wales, 

 

nance 
f 

ngs 

ntains 



 
 

Adopted M
Kingston Sp

VI. L

E
is
pa
re
tr

T
re
pr
se

T
in
re

A

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

B

arch 8, 2012 
prings Design Gu

LIGHTING 

Exterior lightin
s to emphasize
arking area se
esult in the de
respass, glare 

The site lightin
educe or prev
revention of g
ecurity.  

The DRC shall
ntensity of fix
equired lightin

 GENERAA.

. Lighting le
Engineerin
updated sta

. All exterio
for Good E
http://www
of “accepta

. The pole h
building m
measured f

. The lightin
and shall n
or one-half

. Building m
its lamp so

. The use of
lighting sh
pedestrian 

. Lighting le

. All lightin
luminance

 

 SITE SPEB.

uidelines 

ng plays an im
e architectura
erving as a se
egradation of 
and light pol

ng standards c
ent light pollu
glare and ligh

l review a sub
xtures propose
ng levels.  

AL DESIGN

evels should m
ng Society of 
andards and i

or illuminating
Exterior Exter
w.darkskysoci
able” and “un

heights for all 
mass and relate
from the grou

ng of a structu
not, under any
f foot candle 

mounted light 
ource shielded

f creative ligh
hould be used 

or motorist.  

evels shall be

g installation
 levels and gl

ECIFIC ST

mportant role 
al features of 
ecurity measur
the nighttime
lution.  

contained her
ution. This m

ht trespass, the

bmitted Light
ed, in addition

N CRITERI

meet the mini
North Ameri

illumination g

g devices sha
riors Lighting
iety.org/hand
nacceptable/d

nonresidenti
e the pedestri
und surface to

ure or parking
y circumstanc
at a residentia

fixtures shall
d from view t

hting, such as 
to prevent gl

 based on init

s shall be mai
lare control. 

TANDARDS

-19- 

in the design
a building, th
re. However, 

e visual enviro

rein are intend
means to the ex

e conservation

ting Plan illus
n to a Photom

IA 

imum standar
ica (IES or IE
guidelines for

all be full-cuto
g Plans 
douts/Lighting
discouraged” f

al application
ian. For the pu
o the bottom o

g area should 
ce, exceed one
al property lin

l not be locate
o minimize g

uplighting, d
lare with the f

tial lamp lum

intained such

S 

n of a develop
he landscape o

left unregula
onment as a r

ded to regulat
xtent reasonab
n of energy, a

strating the st
metric Plan illu

rds as set forth
ESNA, is an o
r the lighting i

off.  Applican

gPlanGuidelin
fixtures.  

ns should gen
urposes of the
of the lighting

not cast light
e foot candle 
ne.  

ed higher than
glare.  

downlighting, 
fixtures being

mens and 1.0 m

h that they con

pment site, wh
of the site, or 
ated, poor site
result of obtru

te exterior lig
bly possible t
and the prom

tyle, location,
ustrating com

th in the Illum
organization th
industry).  

nts should rev

nes.pdf, whic

nerally be in p
ese standards
g fixture. 

t beyond prop
at a commerc

an the roofline

accent lightin
g aimed away

maintenance f

ntinually prov

hether its func
to illuminate

e lighting can 
usive light 

ghting in order
the reduction 
otion of safet

 height, and 
mpliance with 

minating 
hat establishe

view  Guidelin

ch provides im

proportion to t
s, height shall 

perty boundar
cial property 

e, and shall ha

ng and facade
y from the 

factor.  

vide acceptab

ction 
 a 

r to 
or 

ty and 

the 

es 

nes 

mages 

the 
 be 

ries, 
line, 

ave 

e 

ble 



 
 

Adopted March 8, 2012 -20- 
Kingston Springs Design Guidelines 

1. Gasoline Station/Convenience Store Aprons and Canopies:  

Light fixtures mounted under canopies should be completely recessed into the canopy with 
flat lenses that are translucent and completely flush with the bottom surface (ceiling) of 
the canopy.  

a) The sides (fascias) of the canopy should extend below the lens of the fixture twelve (12) 
inches to block the direct view of the light sources and lenses from the property line.  

b) Lights shall not be mounted on the top or sides (fascia) of the canopy, and the sides of the 
canopy shall not be illuminated.  

c) The lighting levels for new facilities (pump islands and under canopies) shall not exceed 
a maintained average horizontal illumination level of twenty (20) footcandles and should 
conform to IESNA recommended practices. Individual luminaire lamp wattage should 
not exceed 250 watts.  

2. Parking Lots:   

d) All luminaires should be a full cut-off design, aimed downward and away from the 
property line.  

e) Maintained average horizontal illuminance at grade shall not exceed two and one half 
(2.5) footcandles and should conform to IESNA recommended uniformity. 

3. Recreational Areas:  

f) Where playing fields or other recreational areas are to be illuminated, lighting fixtures 
shall be specified in the Photometric Plan, mounted and aimed so that the illumination 
falls within the primary playing area and immediate surroundings so that no direct light 
illumination is directed off site. No outdoor recreational facility, public or private, shall 
be illuminated after 11:00 p.m., except to conclude any recreational event in progress 
prior to 11:00 p.m.  

4. Exterior Illumination of Building, Landscaping and Signs:  

a) The unshielded outdoor illumination of any building or landscaping is prohibited. 
Lighting fixtures used to illuminate an outdoor sign either shall be by directed ground 
lighting or mounted on the top of the sign, and shall comply with shielding requirements 
provided herein.  

5. Exemptions:  

a) Municipal Roadway lighting, approved by the Town of Kingston Springs;  

b) Temporary exemptions with specific written permission from the City Commission, 
based on findings and a recommendation from the Planning Commission;  

c) Construction and emergency lighting-(Lighting necessary for construction or 
emergencies is exempt from these provisions provided said lighting is temporary and is 
discontinued immediately upon completion of the construction work or abatement of the 
emergency necessitating said lighting).  

6. Prohibitions:  

a) Floodlights  



 
 

Adopted March 8, 2012 -21- 
Kingston Springs Design Guidelines 

b) Searchlights  

c) Mercury Vapor fixtures  

d) Sag or drop lenses  

e) Neon is limited to signage (see signage section for requirements) 

 

7. Town Standard Fixture: 

a) Ornamental site lighting and streetscape lighting 
shall be of an “acorn” style fixture matching the 
ornamental lighting along Main Street. See Figure 
7.A  

 

8. Required Submittals:  

a) A site plan drawn to scale showing building(s), 
landscaping, parking areas and proposed exterior 
lighting fixtures.  

b) Location of all post, canopy, supports and light 
fixtures, including the height of each fixture.  

c) Specifications of the illuminating devices, lamps, 
supports and other devices, including designation as IESNA "cut-off' fixtures.  

d) A photometric report with point-by-point spacing no greater than 10' x 10'. Report shall 
include minimum, maximum and average footcandle lighting levels, max-to-min ratio; 
uniformity ratio, and shall indicate the lighting level at the property line.  

e) Indicate the means intended for on/off control of exterior lighting fixtures.  

 
VII. SIGNAGE 

The Town of Kingston Springs permits a wide variety of signage intended to identify businesses 
and institutions, and to convey commercial and non-commercial messages alike. The primary 
purpose of the Town's sign standards is to promote the reasonable, orderly, and effective use and 
display of signs, while enhancing the physical appearance of the Town. Specific sign 
requirements, including the types of signs allowed and prohibited, dimensions, and siting 
restrictions are found in the Town of Kingston Springs Sign Ordinance.  

 GENERAL DESIGN CRITERIA  A.

1. Signage should be consistent in size, material, and location within each development, and 
proportional to the building it is placed on.  

2. Signage shall conform to the architectural character of the principal building in terms of style, 
location, size, configuration, materials, and color.  

3. Sign logos shall be subordinate to the overall sign design.  

Figure 7.A 



 
 

Adopted M
Kingston Sp

4

5

B

1

2

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

arch 8, 2012 
prings Design Gu

. The numbe
discourage

. A compreh
the colors,
be consiste

 SIGN TYB.

. Wall Signs

a) Wall s
elemen

b) Wall s
of the 
flat, un
line ar

c) Typica
signs s

d) Sign c

. Ground Si

a)  Groun
archite

b) The ba

c) Groun
interse

d) Sign st
comm
approp
compl

uidelines 

er of signs us
e visual clutte

hensive Sign 
 type, illumin
ent in size, ma

YPES AND 

s:  

signs should b
nts and detail

signs for comm
cornice, on c
nadorned surf
re not permitte

al franchised 
shall be perm

olors shall co

gns:  

nd signs, inclu
ecture of the p

ase of ground

nd signs shoul
ections.  

tructures for i
ercial retail c
priate materia
iments archit

sed should be 
er.  

Policy is requ
nation, size, an
aterial, locati

LOCATION

be placed in a
 that define th

mercial build
overed transo
faces of the fa
ed.  

box panel/cab
itted for wall 

ompliment the

uding single t
principal buil

d signs shall h

ld be located s

incidental sig
enters, shall b

als with adequ
ectural eleme

-22- 

limited to en

uired for deve
nd location o
on, and desig

N 

a manner that 
he design of t

dings can be lo
oms, or on the
açade. Wall si

binet wall sig
signs. 

e primary bui

tenant and pro
ding.  

have a solid sk

so as not to im

gnage (i.e. dire
be comprehen
uate screening
ents of princip

ncourage comp

elopments of 
f all developm

gn throughout

does not obst
the building. 

ocated above 
e pier that fram
igns that exte

gns are not per

lding or other

oject signs sh

kirt that is lan

mpede visibil

ectional, traff
nsively appro
g of the base S
pal building 

patibility with

two or more 
ment signage
t each develop

truct or crowd

the storefron
mes display w

end beyond th

rmitted. Only

r signage for 

hould emulate

ndscaped.  

lity at entranc

fic manageme
ved by DRC 
Single tenant 

h the building

tenants outlin
. Signage sho
pment.  

d architectura

nt, within the f
windows or o
he building ro

y channel lette

the project. 

e the materials

ces, exits, and

ent, etc.) with
and include 

t ground sign 

g and 

ning 
ould 

al 

frieze 
n 

oof 

er 

s and 

d 

hin 

that 



 
 

Adopted March 8, 2012 -23- 
Kingston Springs Design Guidelines 

3. Subdivision Entrance Signs:  

 

a)  Subdivision entrance signs shall be constructed of quality materials such as brick and 
stone.  

b) Subdivision entrance signs may be placed on one or both sides of the entrance.  

c) Subdivision entrance signs shall be placed in a landscape easement or common open 
space and shall be maintained by the homeowner's association.  

d)  Subdivision entrance signs and their appurtenances (support structures, landscaping, etc.) 
shall not obstruct the "clear site triangle" established for motorists at the subdivision 
entrance. The "clear site triangle" shall be determined by the method prescribed in the 
most recent edition of AASHTO Geometric Design of Highways and Streets.  

4. Sign Materials:  

a) Preferred sign materials include brick, stone, limestone, molded concrete, wood, raised 
individual non-corrosive metal or painted wood letters, painted letters on wood, metal, or 
glass, reverse channel letters, or channel letters.  

b) Individual letters are strongly encouraged.  

c) The use of plastic-faced cabinet signs are strongly discouraged.  

5. Sign Illumination:  

a) The light for or from any sign shall be so shaded, shielded or directed that intensity will 
not be objectionable to surrounding areas.  

b) No sign shall have blinking, flashing or fluttering lights or other illuminating devices that 
change light intensity, brightness or color.  

c) Exposed bulbs shall not be used on the exterior surface of any sign. Neon tube lighting 
such as an “open” sign is permitted but limited to one per business and maximum of three 
(3) square feet in size.  

d) Canopies and awnings shall not have back-lighting. Canopy signs shall not be 
illuminated. Beacon lights are prohibited.  



 
 

Adopted M
Kingston Sp

6

7

 

VIII. E

A

A
th
sp
sh
an

A
co
ex
fo

• 

• 

• 

arch 8, 2012 
prings Design Gu

e) The us
channe

. Sign Color

a) Use co
includ

b)  Use e
avoide

. Temporary

a) Event 
specia
be rem
remain
Review

b) Sandw
Sandw
constru
profes
written
commu
1 per r
height 

c) Street 
bottom
the DR

EXISTING B

 REHABIA.

As buildings a
hat these sites
pace requirem
hould be used
nd / or eligibl

Applicants are
onditions of a
xterior of a bu
ollowing categ

Replac

Repain

Replac

uidelines 

se of external 
el lighting is p

rs:  

olors that com
ing accent an

arth tone tints
ed.  

y Signs 

Banners: Spe
l events and s

moved within 
n in place for 
w Process. Co

wich Board: L
wich board sha
ucted of mate
sionally paint
n message of 
unicate the na
restaurant, caf
limit measur

Pole Banner:
m bracket to th
RC. No comm

BUILDING

ILITATION

nd sites are re
s and building
ments, to the e
d. Deteriorated
le historical st

 encouraged t
a building or d
uilding or site
gories: 

cement of exi

nting or re-roo

cement of win

lighting with
permitted.  

mplement the 
nd trim colors

s of reds, brow

ecial Event Ba
shall be perm
two (2) days 
more than fo

onditional Us

Limited applic
all not obstru
erials that pre
ted or applied
Sandwich Bo
ame of the bu
fé or retail est
red from sidew

 street banner
he light pole.

mercial messa

GS AND SIT

N AND IMP

enovated, upd
gs be updated 
extent practica
d materials sh
tructures. 

to work close
developed sit
e requires prio

isting materia

ofing using si

ndows with si

-24- 

h a shielded li

materials and
.  

wns, tans, gra

anners shall b
itted to be pla
following the
urteen (14) d
e, 50 sf max. 

cations; In are
ct sidewalk o
sent a finishe
d; however, ch
oard signs sho
usiness and/or
tablishment. 
walk  

r shall be mou
1 per street li
ge; 

TES 

PROVEMEN

dated and imp
to comply wi

al. The use of
hould be remo

ely with the T
e to determin
or approval fr

als with the sa

imilar color.

imilar design 

ight source is 

d color schem

ays, and green

be permitted t
aced seven (7
e event. No S

days unless oth
Permitted by

ea of storefron
or means of eg
ed appearance
halkboard sig
ould be kept t
r a special me
10 sf per side

unted securel
ight pole. 10 

NTS  

proved over ti
ith the curren
f high quality
oved. Deferen

Town staff to r
ne the best alte
rom the DRC

ame, including

and color. 

encouraged. 

me of the assoc

ns.  Full chrom

to display ann
7) days prior t
pecial Event 
herwise perm
y review of th

nt during ope
gress. The sig
e. The sign let
gns should be
to the minimu
essage relatin
e max.; 24 inc

ly with an app
sf max. Perm

ime, it is the d
nt Design Gui
y materials for
nce may be g

review existin
ernatives. An

C, unless such 

g materials, d

However, rev

ciated buildin

ma colors sha

nouncement o
to event and m
Banner shall 

mitted through
he DRC.  

n hours only 
gn must be 
ttering should
 permitted. T

um necessary 
g to the busin

ches width; 60

propriate top 
mitted by revie

desire of the T
idelines and o
r such renova
ranted to liste

ng and propo
ny change to t

changes fall 

design and co

verse-

ng, 

all be 

of 
must 

h the 

. 

d be 
he 
to 

ness. 
0 inch 

and 
ew of 

Town 
open 
ations 
ed 

sed 
the 
in the 

lor. 



 
 

Adopted March 8, 2012 -25- 
Kingston Springs Design Guidelines 

 

IX. DEFINITIONS 
 

Bioswale-  a vegetated swale that is a form of bioretention used to partially treat water quality, 
attenuate flooding potential and convey stormwater away from critical infrastructure. 

Green Roof - a building with plants growing on it, designed to be environmentally and 
aesthetically pleasing.  There are two categories of roofs: Extensive Roofs, which utilizes a 
shallow soil depth that is vegetated with groundcover and Intensive Roofs, which requires deeper 
soil amounts for a wider variety of plants; they are heavier and require additional structural 
support and maintenance. Green roofs may also include furniture, light paving materials and 
small structures. 

Footcandle - A quantitative unit of measure referring to the measurement of illumination incident 
at a single point. One footcandle is equal to one lumen uniformly distributed over an area of one 
square foot. By way of reference, the illuminance of full moonlight is measured at 0.01 
footcandles.  

Glare - The sensation produced by a bright source within the visual field that is sufficiently 
brighter than the level to which the eyes are adapted to cause loss in visual performance and 
visibility.  

Glazing -   Percentage of glass openings on a façade.   

Light - That part of the electromagnetic radiation in the wavelength range visible to the naked 
eye.  

Lighting - An artificial supply of light.  

Lumen - A standard unit of measurement referring to the amount of light energy emitted by a 
light source, without regard to the effectiveness of its distribution.  

Luminaire - A complete light unit consisting of a lamp or lamps together with the components 
designed to distribute light on any property, to position and protect the lamps, and to connect the 
lamps to the power supply. A luminaire is also commonly referred to as a fixture.  

Outdoor Light Fixtures - Any illuminating device, including electrically powered devices; 
reflective or refractive surfaces; and lamps and similar devices that is installed outdoors, 
including, but not limited to, devices used to illuminate any site, structure, or sign.  

Parapet Wall -  The part of a perimeter wall that extends above the surface of the roof.  

Photometric Plan - A point-by-point plan depicting the intensity and location of lighting on the 
subject property.  

Porch - is defined as a covered exterior space with no walls on at least one side, facing the street 
and acts as an appendage to the mass of the building. Porches should be designed at an elevation 
that is higher than the sidewalk grade in order to create a separation of private and public 
spaces. Porches should be deep enough to accommodate seating. 



 
 

Adopted March 8, 2012 -26- 
Kingston Springs Design Guidelines 

Rain garden – a shallow planted depression designed to retain or detain stormwater before it is 
infiltrated or discharged downstream. 

Shield - A protective cover or shelter designed to obscure light emission.  

Shielded (Fully) - A lighting fixture that is shielded in such a manner that all light rays emitted by 
the fixture are projected below the horizontal plane passing through the lowest point on the 
fixture from which light is emitted.  

Shielded (Partially) - A lighting fixture that is shielded in such a manner that ninety percent 
(90%) of the light rays emitted by the fixture are projected below the horizontal plane passing 
through the lowest point of the shield.  

Stoop- a small landing connecting a building entrance to the sidewalk by a stair or ramp. 
Typically, a stoop is used for residential multi-family, condominiums, live-work buildings and 
offices but may be appropriate for other uses. Stoops do not have to accommodate seating. 

Storefront - The side of a store facing a street. Storefront should have substantial glazing on the 
façade at ground level, space for pedestrian-oriented signage, awnings, retail display, and other 
design features conducive with creating an active pedestrian streetscape. 

Uniformity Ratio - A quantitative unit of measure referring to the measurement of lighting 
uniformity over a specific area. Specified uniformity ratios are designed to protect against areas 
of insufficient or excessive luminance.  

 

 

 

 

 









Residential Construction Commercial Construction Accessory Structure

Grading/Excavating Driveway Demolition

Deck Signage Roofing

Pool (above and below ground)

Notes on Proposed Project from City Planner:

Potential Next Steps:

City Planner Signature: Date:

To Proceed with your Project you will need:

The following Approved Permit(s):

Surveyed Site Plan showing existing structures, driveways, utilities (septic, sewer, water, gas), setbacks, 
and proposed project location. 

Stamped Architect or Engineered Plans

911 Addressing Compliance

Sewer Application, including septic tank size

Contractor Documentation – TN License, Local Business License, Certificate of Liability Insurance.

Sprinkler Plan

THIS PAGE FOR STAFF USE ONLY

Town of Kingston Springs Planning Department Phone: 615-952-2110 Fax: 615-952-2397





Tennessee Property Assessment Data - Parcel Details Report - https://assessment.cot.tn.gov/

Cheatham (011)
Tax Year 2023 | Reappraisal 2019

Jan 1 Owner
BUCHANAN JEFFREY W & REBECCA M BUCHANAN
TRUSTEES OF *THE BUCHANAN REV LIV TRUST
4221 N CHAPEL ROAD
FRANKLIN TN 37067

Current Owner
4221 N CHAPEL ROAD
FRANKLIN TN 37067

LUYBEN HILLS RD 173
Ctrl Map:
096

Group: Parcel:
069.00

PI: SI:
000

Value Information
Land Market Value: $34,900
Improvement Value: $0
Total Market Appraisal: $34,900
Assessment Percentage: 25%
Assessment: $8,725
Subdivision Data
Subdivision:
BUCHANAN PROPERTY
Plat Book:
13

Plat Page:
390

Block: Lot:
1

Additional Information
General Information
Class: 00 - Residential
City #: 384
Special Service District 1: 000
District: 11
Number of Buildings: 0
Utilities - Water/Sewer: 03 - PUBLIC / INDIVIDUAL
Utilities - Gas/Gas Type: 00 - NONE

City: KINGSTON SPRINGS
Special Service District 2: 000
Neighborhood: K01
Number of Mobile Homes: 0
Utilities - Electricity: 01 - PUBLIC
Zoning:

Outbuildings & Yard Items
Building # Type Description Units

Sale Information
Long Sale Information list on subsequent pages

Land Information
Deed Acres: 3.01 Calculated Acres: 0 Total Land Units: 3.01

Land Code Soil Class Units

03 - SMALL TRACT 3.01

https://assessment.cot.tn.gov/


Sale Information
Sale Date Price Book Page Vacant/Improved Type Instrument Qualification

11/8/2019 $0 554 1646 QC - QUITCLAIM DEED -

12/28/2018 $260,000 542 2762 V - VACANT WD - WARRANTY DEED P - MULTIPLE PARCELS

6/21/2017 $235,000 524 1 I - IMPROVED WD - WARRANTY DEED P - MULTIPLE PARCELS

12/6/1994 $0 360 855 - -

8/29/1955 $0 0091 0493 - -



V-16  

and/or water storage tank(s), as are necessary.  The Board of 
Zoning  Appeals shall determine  the  adequacy of such system(s). 

 
5.         Parking  Space   Requirements:      As   regulated   m   ARTICLE    N, 

SECTION 4.010. 
 

5.052.2.  C-2. Highway Service District. 
 

A. District Description: 
 

This district is designed to provide adequate space in appropriate locations for uses 
which serve the needs of the motoring public.   Automobile and other vehicular 
service establishments, transient sleeping accommodations, and eating and drinking 
establishments primarily characterize this district.  In addition, commercial trade and 
service uses are permitted if necessary to serve the recurring needs of persons 
frequenting these districts.  Community facilities and utilities necessary to serve 
these districts, or necessary for the general community welfare are also permitted.   
Bulk limitations required of uses in these districts, in part, are designed to maximize 
compatibility with lesser intense use of land or building in proximate residential 
districts. Appropriate locations for this district are along major traffic arteries. 

 
B. Uses Permitted: 

 
In the C-2, Highway Service District, the following uses and their accessory uses are 
permitted: 

 
1.         Retail Trade: 

 
(a) Building materials, hardware, and farm equipment, 

 
(b)  General merchandise; 

(c)  Food; 

(d) Appropriately licensed dealerships for automotive, marine craft, 
aircraft and accessories; (Amended by Ordinance 02-006, February 
20, 2003) 

 
(e) Apparel and accessories; 

 
(f) Furniture, home furnishings, and equipment;  

(g) Eating and drinking; 

(h) Drug,   antiques,   books,   sporting   goods,   garden   supplies, 
jewelry, fuel and ice. 

razor
Highlight

razor
Highlight



V-17  

 

2.  Hotels, motels, and tourist courts. 
 

3.  Churches and mortuaries. 
 

4.  Professional services. 
 

5.   Gasoline service stations subject to the provisions  of ARTICLE  IV, 
SECTION 4.060. 

 
6. Commercial recreation uses. 

 
7.  Signs and billboards as regulated in City Sign Ordinance. 

 
8. Finance, insurance and real estate services. 

 
9.  Personal services. 

 
10.  Business services. 

 
11.  Repair services. 

 
12.  Governmental services. 

 
13.  Educational services. 

 
14.  Transportation, communication and utility services. 

 
15.  Medical offices, clinics, etc. 

 
16.  Nursing homes. 

 
17.  Florist shops. 

 
18.  Medical and dental laboratories. 

 
19.   Offices providing advice, design, or consultation   of a professional nature, 

i.e., lawyers, accountants, engineers, architects, etc. 
 

20.  Credit bureau offices. 
 

21.  Banks and savings and loan associations. 
 

22.  Real estate, insurance, and other related business offices. 
 

23.  Day care centers. 
 

24.  Mini-storage warehouse facilities. 
(Deleted by Ordinance 015-005, June 18, 2015)



V-18  

 
C.  Uses Permitted as Special Exceptions: 

 
In the C-2, Highway Service District, the following uses and their accessory uses 
may be permitted as special exceptions after review and approval in accordance with 
ARTICLE VII, SECTION 7.060. 

 
1.  Travel trailer parks and overnight campgrounds. D. 

 Uses Prohibited: 

Industrial uses; warehousing and storage uses, except those which are located 
within an incidental to permitted  use; truck terminals,  junkyards, including 
automobile wrecking and salvage; uses not specifically permitted  or uses not 
permitted upon approval as a specific exception. 

 
E.  Dimensional Regulations: 

 
1.         Minimum Lot Size:   No  minimum lot size shall be required in  the 

C-2 District. 
 

2.         Minimum Yard Requirements: 
 

Front Setback - 
Side- 

 
 
 
 
 

Rear- 

Thirty-five (35) feet 
None  is  required.     However,  if  an 
open  area extending  along  a side lot line  
is  provided,  it  shall  be  at  least fifteen  
(15) feet wide, and it  shall be 
unobstructed. 
Twenty (20) feet 

 
3.  Maximum Lot Coverage:     No  maximum  lot  coverage  shall  be imposed 

in the C-2 District. 
 

4.  Height  Requirements:   No  building or  structure  shall exceed  forty (40) 
feet in height, with the exception of ground  signs and billboards situated 
within two hundred  (200) feet of Interstate  Highway 40 to which  a  sixty 
(60) foot  maximum  height  requirement  shall  apply. Those  specific  types  
of  structures  as  specified  in ARTICLE   VI, SECTION 6.050 are also 
exempted from this maximum height limitation of forty (40) feet.  All 
buildings taller than three (3) stories or thirty-five (35) feet in height shall 
make on-site provisions for the installation of adequate fire protection 
facilities via a sprinkler system and/or water storage tank(s), as are 
necessary.  The Board of Zoning Appeals shall determine the adequacy of 
such system(s). 

 
5.  Parking   Space   Requirement:      As   regulated   in   ARTICLE    IV, 

SECTION 4.010. 

razor
Highlight

razor
Highlight



V-21  

matter, and other hazards, or which create offensive noise, vibration,  heat, humidity, glare, 
and other  objectionable  influences,  by permitting  such development in areas where this 
ordinance restricts the emission of such nuisances, without regard to the industrial products  
or processes involved. 

 
5.  To protect industrial activities and related development against congestion, as far as is 

possible and appropriate in each area, by limiting the bulk of buildings in relation to the land 
around them and to one another, and by requiring space off public ways for parking and 
loading facilities associated with such activities. 

 
6. To  promote the most desirable use of land as well as the most  suitable location  of such  

building  development, to  promote   stability of  industrial  and  related development, to  
strengthen   the  economic  base  of  the  Kingston  Springs  area,  to protect  the character of 
these districts and their peculiar suitability for particular uses, and  to  conserve   the  value  of  
land  and  buildings,  therein  while  protecting  and maximizing Kingston Springs' tax 
revenues. 

 
5.053.1.   I-1, Light Industrial District. A. 

 District Description: 

This  district  is  designed  to  accommodate a  wide  range  of  industrial  and related   
uses   which   conform  to   high  level   of   performance  standards. Industrial  
establishments  of this type, within completely enclosed  buildings, provide  a  buffer  
between  Commercial  Districts  and  other  industrial  uses which involve more  
objectionable  influences.   New residential development is excluded from this 
district, both to protect residences from an undesirable environment and to ensure 
the reservation of adequate areas for industrial development.  Community facilities 
which provide needed services to the allowable industrial uses are also permitted. 

 
B.         Uses Permitted: 

 
In the I-1, Light Industrial District, the following uses and their accessory uses are 
permitted: 

 
1.         Food and kindred products manufacturing, except meat products. 

 
2.  Textile mill products manufacturing except dyeing and finishing of textiles. 

 
3.  Apparel and other finished products made from fabrics, leather, and similar 

materials manufacturing. 
 

4.          Furniture and fixtures manufacturing. 

razor
Highlight

razor
Highlight



V-22  

5.  Printing, publishing and allied industries. 
 

6.  Stone, clay, and glass products manufacturing. 
 

7. Fabricated   metal products   manufacturing   except   ordinance   and 
accessories. 

 
8.  Professional, scientific, and controlling instruments,   photographic and 

optical goods, watches and clocks manufacturing. 
 

9.  Miscellaneous manufacturing including jewelry, silverware and plated ware, 
musical instruments  and  parts, toys, amusement  and  sporting goods   
manufacturing,   pens,  pencils,  and   other   office  materials, costume 
jewelry, novelties and miscellaneous notions;  tobacco manufacturing, 
motion picture production. 

 
10.          All types of wholesale trade. 

 
11.  Office functions only where they are directly related to the industrial 

establishment in which they are located. 
 

12.          Signs and billboards as regulated in City Sign Ordinance. 
 

13.       Warehouse and storage facilities including mini-storage warehouse facilities 
(Amended by Ordinance 015-005, June 18, 2015) 

 
14.          Agricultural equipment sales and repair. 

 
15.  All public utilities including buildings, necessary structures, storage yards 

and other related uses. 
 

16.  Animal health facilities including veterinary clinics. 
 

17.  Building materials storage and sales. 
 

18.  Airports. 
 

19.  Mini-storage warehouse facilities. C. 

 Uses Permitted as Special Exceptions: 

In the I-1, Light Industrial District, the following uses and their accessory uses may 
be permitted as special exceptions after review and approval in accordance with 
ARTICLE VII, SECTION 7.060. 

 
1.         Retail and convenience. 

 
2.          Special institutional care facilities. 

razor
Highlight

razor
Highlight



V-23  

D.  Uses Prohibited: 
 

All uses not specifically permitted or uses not permitted upon approval as a special 
exception. 

 
E.  Dimensional Regulations: 

 
All uses permitted in the I-1, Light Industrial District shall comply with the following 
requirements except as provided in ARTICLE  VI. 

 
1.  Minimum  Lot  Size:  No  minimum  lot  size  is  required  in  the  I-1 

District. 
 

2.  Minimum Yard Requirements: 
 

Front Setback 
Side 
Rear 

30 feet 
30 feet 
30 feet 

 
3.  Maximum  Lot  Coverage:    On  any lot  or  parcel  of  land,  the  area 

occupied   by  all  buildings  including  accessory  buildings  may  not exceed 
fifty (50) percent of the total area of such lot or parcel 

 
4.   Height Requirements:    No  building  shall  exceed  fifty  (50) feet  in height, 

except as provided in ARTICLE VI, SECTION 6.030.  All buildings taller 
than  three  (3) stories or thirty-five (35) feet in height shall make on-site 
provisions for the installation of adequate fire protection  facilities  via  a  
sprinkler  system  and/or  water  storage tank(s),  as  are  necessary.     The 
Board   of Zoning   Appeals   shall determine the adequacy of such 
system(s). 

 
5.  Parking   Space   Requirements:      As   regulated   in ARTICLE    IV, 

SECTION  4.010. 
 

5.053.2.  I-2, Heavy Industrial District. A. 

 District Description: 

This district is designed to accommodate industrial uses which involve more 
objectionable    influences    and   hazards,   and   which   therefore,    cannot    be 
reasonably  expected  to conform  to  a high level of  performance standards, but  
which  are essential for  the  economic  viability of  the  Kingston  Springs area.    No 
new residential developments   are permitted,   thereby insuring protection of such 
developments from an undesirable environment while at the same time insuring 
adequate areas for industrial activities. 

razor
Highlight


	Packet Cover
	KS Regional Planning Commission Agenda 14 March 2024
	KS Regional Planning Commission Minutes 08 February 2024 DRAFT
	GOLF CLUB OF TN - S. HARPETH RD.
	121-B Luyben Hills - PC Application - PATEL NOBEL
	Concept Review Application - PLANNING COMMENTS 20 FEB 2024

	Notes on Proposed Project from City Planner 1: Proposed rezone of 173 Luyben Hills Rd. C-2 Highway Commercial District to I-1 Light Industrial, (I-1 District Regulations
	Notes on Proposed Project from City Planner 2: attached). Parcel lies on Luyben Hills Rd. adjacent to the box factory. There is no sewer service on the lot. Proposed
	Notes on Proposed Project from City Planner 3:  rezoning for undefined Business park with minimal site information provided by applicant. Rezoning of the lot will
	Notes on Proposed Project from City Planner 4: allow all I-1 Light Industrial Uses in the district. Traffic volume is heavily dependent on the proposed use of the parcel
	Notes on Proposed Project from City Planner 5: Rezoning to I-1 would reduce the lot coverage to 50% for structures. I shared with the applicant the current zoning 
	1: of C-2 does not restrict lot coverage and the project as described by the applicant to build flex spaces to accomodate
	2: small build/sell products like furniture, or consumer products with a small storage/warehouse is allowed in the C-2 district.
	Potential Next Steps 1: Application to rezone the property, if approved a Traffic Study of the corridor area, Site Plan (checklist attached), list of proposed uses for all 
	Potential Next Steps 2: all buildings and lot. Sewer application, Performance Bond  for all Grading, and Infrastructure proposed, Construction Plans, Driveway 
	Potential Next Steps 3: Plans and Permit, Construction Permit Application, Grading Plans, and all other Commercial Permit requirements within
	Potential Next Steps 4: Kingston Springs. Planning Recommendation: Rezoning to I-1 not                                                                                         
	1_2: suitable for this location due to corridor constraints, traffic, emergency response and industrial uses, and zone proposed..
	2_2: If the applicant chooses to proceed with an application to rezone and it is approved the following will be required:
	The following Approved Permits: On
	Surveyed Site Plan showing existing structures driveways utilities septic sewer water gas setbacks: On
	Stamped Architect or Engineered Plans: On
	911 Addressing Compliance: On
	Sewer Application including septic tank size: On
	Contractor Documentation  TN License Local Business License Certificate of Liability Insurance: On
	Sprinkler Plan: On
	Date_3: 20 February 2024
	Check Box15: Off
	Check Box16: Yes
	Check Box17: Yes
	Check Box18: Off
	Check Box19: Off
	Check Box20: Off
	Check Box21: Yes
	Check Box22: Yes
	Check Box23: Off
	Check Box24: Off
	Text1: Change of Business Use - 121B Luyben Hills Rd. Signage Approval required by KS Design Review Committee and KS Regional Planning Commission. Meeting will be held on 8 February 2024, 7:00 PM, Beck Meeting Hall for recommendation of the Design Review Committee to the KS Regional Planning Commission for consideration of approval of the signage. Please file an application (attached) to appear before the Design Review Committee and the Regional Planning Commission along with the application fee ($150.00 + Professional Pass-through charges for Planner Review of 2 HRS @ $100.00 per hour). Please provide lumens of the LED Low Voltage System for both signs. Review the Lighting Standards of the Design Review Committee (attached). Permit cannot be issued until the Design Review Committee and KS Regional Planning Commission approve the signage. If the signage is approved an electrical permit issued by the State of TN, copy of liquor license, building inspection and final electrical inspection are required.
	Text3: 
	Text4: 3 January 2023
	Text5:                                                               X 2 SIGNS
	Text6: 
	Text7: 
	Text8: 


